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          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Good

          3  afternoon.  My name is Madeline Provenzano, and I

          4  Chair the Committee on Housing and Buildings.  Today

          5  the Committee is conducting its second hearing on

          6  proposed Intro. 149-A.

          7                 This is a local law that would amend

          8  the Administrative Code of the City of New York in

          9  relation to maintenance of records regarding the

         10  issuance of alterations permits for cellular

         11  telephone antennas and equipment.

         12                 We are also hearing Intro. No. 530,

         13  no we are not hearing, we are considering.  Thank

         14  you, so I have you right next to me.  Intro. No.

         15  530, a local law to amend the Administrative Code of

         16  the City of New York in relation to area eligibility

         17  limitations on benefits pursuant to Section 421-A of

         18  the Real Property Tax Law.

         19                 Proposed Intro. No. 149-A would

         20  require the Commissioner of Buildings to maintain a

         21  separate list of the permits issued to the erection

         22  or placement of antennas used for cellular telephone

         23  service, and any structure related to such service.

         24                 At a minimum, the list should contain

         25  the name, business address, and telephone number of
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          2  the applicant, date of application, date the permit

          3  was issued, the location and zoning district for

          4  which the permit was issued, and the number of

          5  permits issued at the same location.  The Department

          6  of Buildings would be required to begin maintaining

          7  this list prospectively.

          8                 Intro. No. 430 amends the exclusion

          9  zone with regard to the receipt of 421- A tax

         10  benefits in the Borough of Manhattan, and was

         11  drafted in connection with the rezoning and the

         12  redevelopment plan for the Hudson Yards area.  The

         13  hearing was held on this Intro. On January 31st.

         14                 As a reminder the 421- A Tax

         15  Incentive Program is intended to promote the

         16  construction of new multiple dwellings as opposed to

         17  the rehabilitation of existing structures by

         18  providing a declining tax exemption on the increase

         19  and assessed evaluation created by the improvement.

         20  After negotiations the Council and the

         21  Administration reached an agreement regarding the

         22  use of financial and zoning incentives and public

         23  land to generate affordable housing in the Hudson

         24  Yards area.  Based on this agreement it is

         25  anticipated that 25 percent of the 13,600 units of
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          2  new construction projected to be developed in the

          3  Hudson Yard area over the next 20 years will be

          4  affordable to a mix of low-, moderate-, and middle-

          5  income households.

          6                 For developments within the Manhattan

          7  Exclusion Zone, which is roughly defined as

          8  Manhattan, south of 96th Street to Houston Street on

          9  the West Side, and 214th Street on the East Side,

         10  benefits are dependent on at least 20 percent of the

         11  total units being reserved for low- and moderate-

         12  income occupants, or participation in the affordable

         13  housing production program.

         14                 Intro. No. 530 was introduced to

         15  extend the exclusion zone to incorporate the Hudson

         16  Yards area, thus passage of the bill is expected to

         17  enhance the attractiveness of rental development

         18  with at least 20 percent affordable units.

         19                 The Committee heard testimony from

         20  representatives of the Department of Housing

         21  Preservation and Development with regard to this

         22  matter at the previous meeting, and we will be

         23  voting on this today.  Now that is Intro. 530.  It

         24  is not Intro. 149- A.  We are only having a hearing

         25  on that today.
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          2                 I have been joined by, to my right,

          3  Council Member Leroy Comrie, Council Member Robert

          4  Jackson, to my left, Council Member Peter Vallone,

          5  Councilwoman Gale Brewer.

          6                 Council Member Vallone, since we do

          7  not have a quorum and we can't we vote until we do,

          8  would you like to speak on your proposed

          9  legislation?

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Thank you,

         11  Madam Chair. I will be brief because I think

         12  everyone in this room knows what my positions are.

         13  Let me thank you for having a second hearing on this

         14  very important topic, and that being the cell phone

         15  towers in the City.

         16                 Today's hearing is about, well this

         17  is a no brainer, people, this is just keeping track

         18  of where the cell phone towers exist.  Apparently,

         19  not everyone has brains, because some people oppose

         20  this very, very minor requirement.  This is nothing,

         21  this is, compared to what is coming down the pike

         22  regarding cell phone issues, this is a piece of

         23  cake.

         24                 Let me explain what this does.

         25  Knowledge is the key to making sure that we
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          2  responsibly place cell phone antennas up in this

          3  City.  Right now we have none.  Even the City

          4  Buildings Department cannot tell us where cell phone

          5  towers presently exist, because all that is

          6  necessary is the same permit that you or I would get

          7  to do some work on the front of our house.  They are

          8  not kept separately, there is no record kept. All

          9  this bill does is state that the City needs to keep

         10  these records separately so that there is a list, a

         11  record made, where of where cell phone towers exist.

         12    It is very clear, very simple, and I look forward

         13  to the testimony today on both sides, oh, I really

         14  look forward to that.

         15                 So thank you, Madam Chair for having

         16  this very important hearing.  This Committee, as

         17  well as the Health Committee, I see Council Member

         18  Quinn hear, who will be voting out Thursday, a

         19  resolution of mine to call for a Health Department

         20  study on the effects of cell phone towers, very soon

         21  we will be voting on that.  I believe it is coming

         22  out of Committee Thursday, but she is the Chair.

         23  And so have become leaders, worldwide leaders in

         24  protecting people, and moving forward responsibly.

         25  I am Public Safety Chair, no one knows the
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          2  importance of these cell phones more than I do, and

          3  especially when it comes to 9- 1- 1 and keeping us

          4  safe.  We are just asking that we do this

          5  responsibly and with knowledge.

          6                 So thank you for having this hearing.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  We are

          8  joined by Councilman Lew Fidler, Councilwoman

          9  Melinda Katz, and I think by Councilwoman Chris

         10  Quinn, or she hasn't decided yet.  It's a yes? Okay.

         11                 Since we have quorum we will vote and

         12  get that business out of the way, and then we will

         13  proceed with the hearing on Intro. 149- A.

         14                 MS. NASSER:  We are going to vote on

         15  Intro. No. 530, which is the 421- A Bill, which is

         16  tied to the Hudson Yards and the affordable housing

         17  piece.

         18                 Council Member Provenzano.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  I vote

         20  yes, and again, I would like to give credit to

         21  Councilwoman Christine Quinn who was basically the

         22  author of that bill.

         23                 MS. NASSER:  Council Member Brewer.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  I vote yes,

         25  and certainly congratulate everyone who worked on
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          2  it.  I just, also Sean Donovan, who is the Head of

          3  HPD in the City of New York.  And normally I am

          4  always, as the Chairwoman knows, challenged and not

          5  supportive of some these abatements.  But in this

          6  situation it is a very creative way to provide

          7  permanent housing, sort of fusing a couple of

          8  different programs, and figuring out a way that a

          9  very large percentage of the Hudson Yards area is

         10  permanently affordable to New York City residents.

         11                 Thank you very much.  I vote aye.

         12                 MS. NASSER:  Council Member Comrie.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  I want to

         14  echo the sentiments of my colleagues, and hope that

         15  also this 421- A package can be applicable to other

         16  areas in this City, clearly, affordable housing is a

         17  concern.  And hopefully this will be a template that

         18  other areas will be able to use too and not just the

         19  West Side.

         20                 Clearly, Council Member Quinn needs

         21  to be commended for bringing this program to that

         22  area, and hopefully we can make sure that the

         23  Manhattan Zone is something that will happen all

         24  over the City in this need for affordable housing.

         25                 I vote aye.

                                                            11

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 MS. NASSER:  Council Member Fidler.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Madam

          4  Chairwoman, I have had more than my share to say

          5  about the Hudson River Rezoning. And the problems I

          6  have with the matter in which we dealt with this in

          7  the past, and committed millions and millions of

          8  dollars to an Economic Development program for the

          9  wealthiest real estate in the world, outside of the

         10  ordinary budget process.

         11                 This bill, however, is not part of

         12  that problem. In fact, it probably works in the

         13  other direction.  I certainly want to commend

         14  Councilwoman Quinn and those others who have worked

         15  on this to make sure that the West Side of Manhattan

         16  has affordable housing built, as well as luxury

         17  housing and other developments, and so I vote aye.

         18                 MS. NASSER:  Council Member Jackson.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Aye.

         20                 MS. NASSER:  Council Member Katz.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Aye.

         22                 MS. NASSER:  By this point, by a vote

         23  of 6 in the affirmative, the measure has passed, and

         24  we will keep the vote open.  Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  James Oddo
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          2  is here.

          3                 MS. NASSER:  Council Member Oddo.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Yes.

          5                 MS. NASSER:  Thank you.  The measure

          6  is passed 7 in the affirmative, 0 negative, 0

          7  abstentions, we will still keep it open.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay, thank

          9  you.  Our first witness will be from the Department

         10  of Buildings, Phyllis Arnold, General Counsel,

         11  welcome.

         12                 MS. ARNOLD:  Good afternoon, Madam

         13  Chair, members of the Housing and Buildings

         14  Committee. I am Phyllis Arnold, I am General Counsel

         15  at the Department of Buildings.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Are you on,

         17  Phyllis?  If you are off, you are on.

         18                 MS. ARNOLD:  I am on.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay.  I am

         20  here before you, the second time, on Intro. 149,

         21  this case 149- A.  I appeared before you last year

         22  and voiced the Department's concerns over the bill,

         23  and indicated that we had no opposition to this

         24  requirements to maintain lists of cellular antennae

         25  that were permitted by the Department.
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          2                 I am here today to articulate a

          3  concern with the amended version of the bill as

          4  follows:

          5                 As amended Intro. 149- A would

          6  require the Department to maintain the list with

          7  prescribed information of alterations permits issued

          8  for the erection or placement of cellular antennae.

          9  The bill would require that we make the list

         10  available to the public during regular business

         11  hours, and that we post the list on our web site.

         12                 While we have no objection to making

         13  the document available in the regular course of

         14  business, we must note the potential sensitivity of

         15  that information in the aggregate concerning the

         16  location of cellular antennae.

         17                 In light of that we believe that

         18  public disclosure should be available but on a

         19  controlled basis as our documents are otherwise

         20  available through the freedom of information law,

         21  and through regular perusal bar permits on the web

         22  site.  In which case to FOIL, for example, we

         23  provide documentation of both requests and

         24  responses.

         25                 We recommend against making the

                                                            14

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  information available through the web on a wholesale

          3  basis, since the anonymity and immediacy of such

          4  access would serve to shield those who might seek to

          5  acquire it for unlawful use.  Indeed, access to this

          6  information should be afforded in a manner similar

          7  to other routine information requests through

          8  written requests and responses, and through are

          9  perusal of the permits and filings that are

         10  available to the public on our web site on a weekly

         11  basis.  In this manner, the public interest in

         12  obtaining the information is protected while

         13  minimizing the ability of anyone with unlawful

         14  intentions to acquire sensitive information without

         15  accountability.

         16                 I am happy to take questions.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Council

         18  Member Vallone.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Thank you,

         20  Madam Chair. And Ms. Arnold, thank you for coming

         21  down today.  The Administration has been very

         22  helpful in crafting this bill.  They have been

         23  working with us on this.  I see that you are not

         24  opposed to it, so I thank you for that, and you

         25  weren't last time either.
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          2                 You do have a concern though about

          3  the public having access to this list, worthy of

          4  discussion.  So can you, maybe, shed some light on

          5  what you mean when it says acquire for unlawful use,

          6  what concerns do you have?

          7                 MS. ARNOLD:  I am happy to talk with

          8  you about this Council Member Vallone.  I think

          9  that, in all honesty, these are conversations that

         10  we might well have in a more intimate setting.  I

         11  don't think it is really appropriate for us to be

         12  talking at a public hearing about some of the

         13  concerns the City has with posting information on

         14  the web site.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  I understand

         16  why you would feel that way.  And we will,

         17  obviously, have the discussion.  But there is no

         18  area of unlawful use that you can discuss in public?

         19    We discuss unlawful uses all the time in different

         20  Committees, especially in my Committee.  And I

         21  understand why some of you might not want to.  But

         22  are there any that you might - -

         23                 MS. ARNOLD:  It is my understanding

         24  that some members of the industry today may well be

         25  in a position to be better responsive to your
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          2  question today than the Department is. And all I can

          3  say is we have taken great pains to shield sensitive

          4  information, and those are the pains that we are

          5  more than happy to describe with you.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  The reason

          7  that I am asking is because there may be some

          8  concerns that I am unaware of, that is very likely.

          9  And the only concern that I heard last time from the

         10  industry was terrorism.

         11                 And as Public Safety Chair the notion

         12  of terrorists planting 1,000 explosions on the roofs

         13  of two- and three- family homes, so that you and I

         14  cannot text each other is patently absurd. So I was

         15  hoping that there was some other concern that might

         16  be in your mind would necessitate this extra step.

         17                 I am not opposed to the extra step,

         18  but I would like to, maybe, but I would like to

         19  speak to you about it to see if there is some

         20  legitimate concern as opposed to terrorists going

         21  after two- family buildings, which they can clearly

         22  see right now.

         23                 But I thank you and look forward to

         24  working with you on that.

         25                 MS. ARNOLD:  Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Council

          3  Member Brewer.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Thank you.

          5  This may be a little bit off, and so tell me if it

          6  is.  What happens now is that the antennas that go

          7  on the roofs and so on, or on other kinds of

          8  surfaces that reach into the sky.  I don't know, I

          9  guess, I don't know if this includes pole tops, but

         10  it certainly does include roofs, that that is what

         11  we are talking about.

         12                 But the cable that goes up and down,

         13  this is something that I don't like, up and down of

         14  a building, is that a separate alteration permit?

         15  In other words, I don't think this bill covers that,

         16  but you know when you have some of the, I know that

         17  Nextel does it, they have, I guess it is for

         18  cellular service in an area.  Would that be a

         19  different kind of alteration permit, or would that

         20  be the same?  The cabling going up and down so that

         21  you reach more users, or consumers in an area than

         22  if is on the roof, apparently?

         23                 MS. ARNOLD:  My understanding,

         24  Council Member Brewer, is that if those cables are

         25  part of the structural installation they would be
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          2  captured by the filing.  The cables by themselves to

          3  the extent they are not structural in nature would

          4  not necessarily be the subject of an independent

          5  filing.

          6                 All right, so the file, this bill

          7  would cover the antennae, so- to- speak, that are

          8  part of a cabling system that goes up and down the

          9  side of a building?

         10                 MS. ARNOLD:  It would cover the

         11  antennae.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay, the

         13  antennae portion.  Because what happens is sometimes

         14  companies don't put the antennae on the roof, they

         15  put it actually on the side of a building.

         16                 MS. ARNOLD:  Right.  My

         17  understanding, as I understand the bill, it would

         18  cover the antennae - -

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Portion,

         20  portion.

         21                 MS. ARNOLD:  That is right.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay, and the

         23  other thing is I don't know what these things are

         24  called, even though I Chair Technology, but there is

         25  like a refrigerator looking thing that goes in the
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          2  backyard that also has equipment in it.  That would

          3  not be covered by this.

          4                 Sometimes it is hard in the new

          5  technology that we are moving into what exactly is

          6  covered, because there are many different ways now

          7  of kind of getting the single out.  And I am

          8  actually, as many of you know, more pro cellular

          9  than most.  But I am just trying to understand what

         10  it is that we are talking about here.

         11                 MS. ARNOLD:  The bill may be phrased

         12  in terms of the antennae used to provide cellular

         13  telephone service, or the structures, I think that

         14  even under the bill it may well, it would be

         15  encompassed by the structures related to the

         16  service.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  So that

         18  would, in fact, be the cabling that holds the

         19  antennas up, up and down a building, possibly.

         20                 MS. ARNOLD:  Well at the risk of

         21  sounding like I am giving you a hard time, I don't

         22  mean to.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  No, I

         24  understand that.

         25                 MS. ARNOLD:  But I am not fully
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          2  confident that the cabling is structural in nature,

          3  the equipment may well be, to the extent that it is

          4  anchored, and it has a casing around it.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  It definitely

          6  has all the above, okay.

          7                 And then the other question is does

          8  this cover the pole tops that the City obviously got

          9  RFPs out for?  In other words, i.e., the public

         10  poles that are owned by U and I?

         11                 MS. ARNOLD:  Those kind of

         12  installations would not necessarily come to the

         13  Department, they are not within a lot line and

         14  privately owned.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  So that would

         16  be a separate discussion.  I don't want to bring it

         17  up, actually.

         18                 And then the other question that I

         19  have is, when we are talking about cellular phone

         20  antennas, we are not talking about those that are

         21  part or maybe Wi- Max or any of the other new

         22  technologies?

         23                 MS. ARNOLD:  I am going to

         24  demonstrate my ignorance and tell you that I am not

         25  sure that I would know what that is, or whether that
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          2  relates meaningfully to the antennae discussion in

          3  any way.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay, if they

          5  are larger. Thank you very much.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Do we have

          7  any other questions for Council Member Jackson?

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Thank you,

          9  Madam Chair. I just have a couple of simple

         10  questions because I am not up to speed on this.  Can

         11  you explain to me what is the process now when an

         12  owner of an apartment complex or building wants to

         13  have an antenna installed on their property, what is

         14  the process that they go through right now?

         15                 MS. ARNOLD:  I am sure there is a

         16  piece of the process that takes place before a

         17  filing comes to the Department of Buildings.  I am

         18  really only in a position to speak to you about what

         19  process kicks in once a job is filed with us.  It

         20  may be filed by an owner, it may be filed by the

         21  cellular company.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.

         23                 MS. ARNOLD:  More likely the ladder.

         24  And so what goes on between the owner and the

         25  cellular company, I cannot tell you, Sir.
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          2                 When the job does come to the

          3  Department, it is filed as an alteration, and it can

          4  be filed in one of, in any variety of forms today,

          5  depending on what, if any other work is happening in

          6  conjunction with it.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  But is that,

          8  is it automatically approved or what?  What is the

          9  review process?  For example, if I am an owner and I

         10  cut, I have an agreement or a tentative agreement

         11  with this company here to install a huge antennae on

         12  my property right next to the George Washington

         13  Bridge, and then I file papers with you, meaning the

         14  Department, what is the process and how long does it

         15  take?  I mean is it a rubber stamp, is it

         16  automatically approved, do you examine, go out and

         17  examine the location, and can you - -

         18                 MS. ARNOLD:  Sure.  The process for

         19  filing an antennae is no different than the process

         20  for filing a 40- story building.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  I don't know

         22  what the process is.

         23                 MS. ARNOLD:  You can come in and it

         24  can be a plan that is reviewed by a Department Plan

         25  Examiner, or the applicant on the job, the architect
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          2  or engineer, can professionally certify it.  And in

          3  which case it is that applicant, that professional

          4  who is attesting to the Code compliance and Zoning

          5  compliance of the proposed installation.

          6                 We have policies and procedures, we

          7  have a policy and procedure notice that governs the

          8  installation of cellular antennae- related devices

          9  that has been a guide for the industry since 1998

         10  when it was put out, concerning its treatment under

         11  zoning and its treatment under Code, substantively.

         12  But when it comes to the process this job, like any

         13  other, can either be examined, or professionally

         14  certified at the applicant's option.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  At the

         16  applicant's option.

         17                 MS. ARNOLD:  That is correct.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.  And

         19  how long does that process take?

         20                 MS. ARNOLD:  I don't have our data on

         21  that.  We certainly have data - -

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Do you have

         23  any idea, a month, six months, a year?

         24                 MS. ARNOLD:  If a job is

         25  professionally certified, it can be quite short.  If
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          2  it is examined, it can be longer.

          3                 It comes in on a fairly minor job,

          4  generally.  If it is the only proposed work

          5  reflected in the filing.  It would not be the kind

          6  of filing that requires an inspection or change in

          7  the certificate of occupancy.  So the lead times to

          8  those, to first reviews of those, are fairly short,

          9  in most of the boroughs right now.  I can certainly

         10  get you data  on our turn- around time for first

         11  review for alterations II jobs.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  So that is

         13  only, you would only have information about those

         14  antennas, if in fact an applicant or an owner or an

         15  architect actually filed the papers with the

         16  Department of Buildings.  But if they go ahead and

         17  put it up without your permission, without your

         18  approval, you would have no knowledge of that.  Is

         19  that correct?

         20                 MS. ARNOLD:  Unless and until we

         21  were, it was a subject of a complaint, that is true.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Have you

         23  received complaints about antennas and determined

         24  that they were not registered with the Department of

         25  Buildings?
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          2                 MS. ARNOLD:  I don't have that

          3  information available, I would be happy to get it to

          4  you.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Can you get

          6  me that information, if you don't mind?

          7                 MS. ARNOLD:  What period of time

          8  would you be looking for?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  What?

         10                 MS. ARNOLD:  What period of time are

         11  you looking for?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  I guess, you

         13  know, I don't know how you keep it, but you know,

         14  within the past two years, if that is not, you know,

         15  unworkable.  I am curious to know, because I know

         16  that, quite frankly, a lot of alterations take place

         17  in buildings without proper filing of the papers.

         18                 MS. ARNOLD:  Okay, we will get it for

         19  you.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And I know

         21  that constituents in my district are concerned about

         22  these antennas. My district, by the way, runs from

         23  121st Street and Broadway. And I am right near the

         24  West Side Highway, and includes the area right near

         25  the George Washington Bridge.  So where the West
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          2  Side Highway, and the GWB, it is right there.  So I

          3  am curious about that.

          4                 Because you know my people are

          5  concerned about the number of antennas and the

          6  health effects that they have on their families and

          7  what have you.  And I know that is a big issue,

          8  overall.

          9                 And I know this has nothing, I don't

         10  know if it has nothing to do with it, but it is not

         11  the immediate subject of this particular hearing,

         12  but, you know, that is an issue that effects, that I

         13  have heard from my constituents about, so I am

         14  interested in that.

         15                 Now with respect to a constituent,

         16  let's assume that you had a group, a community-

         17  based organization that wanted to come down and see

         18  in their geographical area what antennas were in

         19  that area, could they come down to the Department of

         20  Buildings and access that information on your

         21  computer, without filing a formal Freedom of

         22  Information Request?

         23                 MS. ARNOLD:  Today they can actually

         24  do it on their computer on home.  But in both cases,

         25  whether it is by paper or by computer, at somebody's
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          2  desk, or at the Department, you can access the

          3  information by property.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  By property.

          5                 MS. ARNOLD: That is right.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  So, but you

          7  would have to know that an antenna exists on the

          8  property, is that correct?

          9                 MS. ARNOLD:  That is true.  The other

         10  option is to lose our web site, our building

         11  information system, puts up, we put up three reports

         12  on a weekly basis, permits filed, permits granted,

         13  and signs.  One could peruse the weekly filings by

         14  location.  One still needs to know location, and at

         15  least today, there is no requirement that a cellular

         16  antennae filing come in as a separate work type.  So

         17  it would be dependent on the words the applicant

         18  chose to use in describing the job as to whether the

         19  person sitting at home looking at BIS on the Web,

         20  would know out of the several hundred permits filed

         21  this week, which ones are cellular antennae.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  When they

         23  search by geographical area, I assume that you are

         24  talking about by Borough.  Is there a breakdown

         25  other than Borough in geographical areas?
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          2                 MS. ARNOLD:  The data are capable of

          3  being downloaded and searched in any of a variety of

          4  ways.  You know, by location, by permit type, by

          5  address, it is up to the user.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  So, for

          7  example, if I wanted to know how many antennas were

          8  there in Morning Side Heights, for example, which is

          9  part of my area, which is like, you know, I

         10  represent Morning Side Heights, Hamilton Heights,

         11  Washington Heights, Innwood, West Harlem, could I

         12  throw in a geographical area like that, or would I

         13  have to put something else more specific?

         14                 MS. ARNOLD:  No, I think you need to

         15  be a little more specific, given the form in which

         16  those filings are currently posted.  They are just

         17  posted by Borough, in chronological order, what

         18  comes in on a given week, citywide.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.

         20                 MS. ARNOLD:  So you need to do some

         21  work to download and sort the data that is available

         22  on the web right now.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Final

         24  question, we think they would be, would they be

         25  broken down by Borough, at least?  I mean that would
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          2  make it pretty easy if somebody was searching, for

          3  example, Manhattan.  You know you see the address

          4  15th Street or Avenue A, they know that it is not

          5  our geographical area.  But if they see 145th Street

          6  and Broadway, or 1385 Broadway, the answer may be,

          7  yeah, that is in our geographical area.

          8                 MS. ARNOLD:  I don't believe that the

          9  permit filings are posted separately by Borough.

         10  They are accumulatively, and the Borough is actually

         11  a very easy thing to sort.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Right.

         13                 MS. ARNOLD:  Because each of our

         14  boroughs has a different designation from one to

         15  five, and that really is quite simple to sort.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.  You

         17  mean that you don't believe that is the case now

         18  though, but it is easy to sort that way.  Is that

         19  correct?

         20                 MS. ARNOLD:  Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay, well

         22  thank you very much.  Thank you, Madam Chair.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Council

         24  Member Comrie. Council Member Vallone.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Thank you,
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          2  Madam Chair. Just briefly, Council Member Jackson, a

          3  very pertinent question. You are absolutely right,

          4  the permit necessary here is just the lowest

          5  threshold permit.  And once certified by a

          6  professional, it is rubber stamped.  And whether

          7  that is proper is a question for another day, which

          8  we will be discussing.

          9                 But I said some things in my opening

         10  statement, which we did not hear from the stand, but

         11  we did hear it last time.  So, I just want to

         12  briefly go into this right now.  I am correct when I

         13  state that the City does not keep a record of where

         14  the cell phone towers presently exist, correct?

         15                 MS. ARNOLD:  It is correct that we do

         16  not aggregate them by location.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Okay.  Not

         18  only do you not list their location, you don't keep

         19  separate record of them at all, they are listed with

         20  every other alterations.

         21                 MS. ARNOLD:  As I indicated to

         22  Council Member Jackson, at the moment there is no

         23  separate work type for cellular antennae.  It would

         24  be our intent to establish that, if the bill passes.

         25

                                                            31

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  No, I

          3  understand that, I just want to make that clear,

          4  because I did request the list a while back, and

          5  have a letter from you here that said that you don't

          6  have the information available to me.

          7                 So, when someone seeks to FOIL this

          8  information from you, should it not be available on

          9  the web as you request? One of the defenses of FOIL,

         10  as I spoke to Council Member Katz about, is that you

         11  don't have the information.

         12                 So if we pass this bill and you have

         13  the information, that would not be a defense,

         14  correct?

         15                 MS. ARNOLD:  Subject to whatever, if

         16  any applicable exemptions are available under the

         17  Public Offices Law, that is correct.  It would not

         18  be a defense that we don't have the information.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Well do you

         20  foresee any other defense as you might use to

         21  prevent this information from being accessed by the

         22  public?

         23                 MS. ARNOLD:  I can't, I am not in a

         24  position to say it now.  I think just as a matter of

         25  practical lawyering, it is an option that you always
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          2  need to think about.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Well,

          4  frankly, if you are going to exercise that option,

          5  then it is something we would not put in the bill.

          6  So we do need to discuss that.  If you are going to

          7  use FOIL to prevent the access to this, then it is

          8  not worth us putting it in.  If you are going to use

          9  it just to keep track of who is requesting the

         10  information, which is a legitimate concern, then we

         11  will.  So we will need to have that discussion.

         12                 MS. ARNOLD:  Yes, Sir.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Council

         15  Member Comrie.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Thank you,

         17  Madam Chair. Just a basic question, Ms. Arnold, did

         18  Buildings Department, when they do the alterations

         19  certificate, you already have an idea of where these

         20  sites are, or do they have to indicate on

         21  alterations certificate what they are doing?

         22                 MS. ARNOLD:  Yes.  An alteration

         23  application is property specific, so it is by

         24  definition handled in the Department, filed input in

         25  terms of data by property.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Okay, and

          3  your data is now being computerized how quickly

          4  after a certificate is filed, alterations

          5  certificate?

          6                 MS. ARNOLD:  I think it is up on the

          7  web the week it comes in.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  The week it

          9  comes in.

         10                 MS. ARNOLD:  Yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  So ostensibly

         12  someone could find out this information now?

         13                 MS. ARNOLD:  Quickly, but you need to

         14  know what, as I indicated to Council Member Jackson,

         15  you would not see the aggregate list by type of work

         16  as much as you would see all the properties that

         17  have come in.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  But if I

         19  punch in a zip code or an address, I would be able

         20  to find out what is the permit is delineating for

         21  that site?

         22                 MS. ARNOLD:  Certainly by address, if

         23  you put in an address you can see a recent activity.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Okay, thank

         25  you.
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          2                 Okay, how long a period of time

          3  between the application for a permit and the

          4  issuance of a permit?

          5                 MS. ARNOLD:  It really depends on how

          6  it is filed, and whether it is filed in conjunction

          7  with any other work.  If it is reviewed, it is going

          8  to take a little longer, than if it is

          9  professionally certified.  But if it pro- certed and

         10  filed electronically, or by uploading data from the

         11  disc, it can turn around in a shorter period as a

         12  day.  It might take longer, as I say, if it is

         13  reviewed.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  So that is

         15  the permit to site, but what about the sign- off

         16  permit?  Does the Buildings Department come and do a

         17  final sign- off that the work was done properly?

         18                 MS. ARNOLD:  In rebuildings we do,

         19  and in major alterations that change use, egress, or

         20  occupancy.  If there is none of the above, in other

         21  words, if it is an alterations, not a new building,

         22  and it is an alterations that doesn't change use,

         23  egress, or occupancy in a way that requires a new

         24  certificate of occupancy, we do not inspect the work

         25  at its conclusion.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  So you don't

          3  do a final inspection of sites, once they are

          4  installed, primarily, unless they do alterations.

          5                 MS. ARNOLD:  Not unless they are

          6  major alterations with new C of O's.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Oh, I am

          8  clear.  But you can, but a person can get the

          9  information on the web, as long as they punch in an

         10  address?

         11                 MS. ARNOLD:  That is true.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Okay, thank

         13  you.  Thank you, Madam Chair.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Council

         15  Member Brewer.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  I am

         17  belaboring this point a bit, but one of the

         18  divisions that may not show up even in such a

         19  listing is those antennas that are on the roof

         20  versus those antennas that are going up and down the

         21  building.  Is that a correct statement?

         22                 MS. ARNOLD:  I think that is a fair

         23  characterization.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Because that

         25  is what concerns me.  I am one of these people who
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          2  doesn't mind it on the roof.  I know that there are

          3  those in the audience who may disagree.  But I do

          4  believe that going up and down the building is a

          5  problem.  Now do you maintain that under the Telecom

          6  Act that you have no authorization to change the

          7  siting of something like that?  In other words, we

          8  are all trying to get at the fact that there are

          9  concerns here, and of course, supposedly under the

         10  jurisdiction, to a certain extent, of these siting

         11  problems.  But it does seem to me that there is a

         12  limit.  But you do have any sense of what we can't

         13  or can do in terms of the Telecom Act and the siting

         14  issue?

         15                 MS. ARNOLD:  No, I mean I think that

         16  is a somewhat subtle and complicated question

         17  through which we and other agencies might well turn

         18  to the Law Department for some guidance.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay, I would

         20  like to have some information on that, because I

         21  don't know if it is an increasing problem.  There

         22  are obviously more antennae, that we know.  I don't

         23  know if there are more antennae running up and down

         24  the sides of buildings.  My understanding having

         25  been to many meetings on this topic, is that you as
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          2  a company receive more hits, so- to- speak, more

          3  people are able, as they walk by with their cell

          4  phones to access, particularly neighborhoods like

          5  mine where there are tall buildings.  Obviously, in

          6  a low- rise area the roof is low, so it is not the

          7  same issue.

          8                 But we have high- risers, some of the

          9  companies like to run it up and down along the

         10  residential apartments, and that is a very different

         11  feeling than if it is on the roof, if you are a

         12  person living in that apartment.

         13                 So I would love to know how many are

         14  running up and down the sides of buildings, as

         15  opposed to the roof?  And I would also like to know

         16  if the Department has any jurisdiction over that

         17  kind of siting?

         18                 Thank you very much.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         20  We have been joined by Councilman Tony Avella and

         21  Councilwoman Diana Reyna. Do we have any other

         22  questions for Phyllis Arnold?  Nope, okay, thank

         23  you.

         24                 Okay, we are going to take the vote

         25  from our two, I hate to say, late Council members,
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          2  but I will, tardy.

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Council Member

          4  Avella.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  Aye.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Council Member Reyna.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Permission to

          8  explain my vote?  I apologize, Madam Chair for being

          9  late, I will accept that.  I just wanted to commend

         10  Council Member Quinn for her diligence in providing

         11  a adequate amount of affordable housing. And

         12  although I have my doubts of a program such as the

         13  421- A tax abatement program, I believe that

         14  developers at the end gain as opposed to New York

         15  City gaining.  We do believe in moving forward with

         16  the Hudson Rail Yards Rezoning and providing the

         17  mixed income communities that we so need in New York

         18  City.  I believe that this will enable the

         19  affordable housing that we have been calling for in

         20  this rezoning, and in future rezonings, such as the

         21  Williamsburg/Greenpoint waterfront.

         22                 So I vote aye.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK:  The vote currently

         24  stands at 9 in the affirmative, 0 in the negative,

         25  and no abstentions.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

          3  I will now be calling other witnesses.  I am not

          4  putting anybody on a clock today, surprise,

          5  surprise.  But I ask you to try and be as brief as

          6  possible.

          7                 I know that there are many parents

          8  here from PS 122 in Astoria.  We may not get to hear

          9  all of you, so the ones that do come up, make sure

         10  that they are the really, you know, adamant ones.

         11                 Right now I am calling, who do we

         12  have, Maria Gonzalez, I was looking right at her;

         13  Evie Hantzopoulos; and Ernest Brooks.  Anyone of you

         14  can start when you are ready.  Just make sure that

         15  the mic is close to you, and when the light is off,

         16  the mic is on.

         17                 MS. GONZALEZ:  Hi, my name is Maria

         18  Gonzalez, and I have been a critical care nurse for

         19  the past 25 years.  The last 20 years I have been an

         20  Assistant Clinical Care Coordinator for the ICU in

         21  Manhattan in a Trauma Center.

         22                 Right now, right here, I am just

         23  trying to represent the parents at PS 122 in the

         24  community, and the irresponsible placement of cell

         25  phone antennas right across the street from PS 122,
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          2  which two of my daughters attend school there.

          3                 A couple of months ago, 12 cell phone

          4  antennas were placed right across the street from

          5  the school, it is within 200 feet, where there were

          6  places in a building that is a four story building

          7  opposed to our school, which is a five- story

          8  building.  And once these antennas get activated,

          9  the children in 122 will be directly be getting all

         10  that radiation at a continuous level, eight hours a

         11  day, five days a week, for many, many years.

         12                 And what is appalling to us parents,

         13  and as a community member, and very frightening is

         14  that right now there has been absolutely no

         15  independent studies done on the long- term effects

         16  of what RF radiation can to do to children.  Okay?

         17  And before there is any studies done, any

         18  independent studies, I am not talking about the

         19  company, the company have done their studies, but

         20  independent studies done, they are placing these in

         21  front of children.

         22                 The industries are all saying that

         23  they are following the FCC standards.  First of all,

         24  the FCC standards are totally, they are outdated,

         25  okay.  And the FCC Inspector did come to the site,
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          2  they spoke to myself and the principal, and I did

          3  ask the Inspector saying has there been any

          4  independent studies done on the long- term effect on

          5  the children of the RF radiation? And the Inspector

          6  looked at me and said, no, I don't believe so. Also,

          7  I said to him, okay, that is very frightening.  And

          8  another thing when you come in an measure these

          9  standards, these levels that you are saying that

         10  they are sticking to it, first of all, you come in,

         11  you take these levels, and these levels are only for

         12  a second.  And these kids are going to be exposed,

         13  and the teachers are going to be exposed it for long

         14  periods of time, for eight hours a day.  So then he

         15  said, yes.  And I said, another thing is that these

         16  measurements that they have are also, the only thing

         17  in consideration the thermal effect of the cell, how

         18  fast your cells can heart up.  They are not taking

         19  effect on the non- thermal effect of the cell, which

         20  there is a lot of growing evidence all over Europe

         21  and a lot of studies done in Europe, they are saying

         22  that there can be DNA destruction.

         23                 And what really frightened me the

         24  most is that I said to the FCC Inspector, I said,

         25  okay, now these levels that you come in and take,

                                                            42

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  are these levels appropriate for an adult, for a

          3  teenager, or for a child?  And what he said to me

          4  was, I don't know, Ma'am, they are the same.  And I

          5  said, how can you say that it is acceptable to

          6  receive radiation for my five- year old, my six-

          7  year- old that is 55 pounds and my husband that is

          8  200 pounds and an adult, you are telling me that it

          9  is the same levels of acceptable.  And he said to

         10  me, yes, Ma'am.  That is frightening, it is

         11  appalling, it is disgusting.

         12                 How can you say that the same level

         13  for a child and an adult is the same?  I am an ICU

         14  Nurse, and as an ICU Nurse I have been talking to

         15  doctors in the field.  And they are saying, how can

         16  they say that?  Okay?  A dose for an adult can be

         17  fatal for a child.  The child's skulls are very

         18  permeable, they can absorb.  A seven- year- old

         19  absorbs twice the amount of radiation.  Okay?  Their

         20  immune systems are still growing, their nervous

         21  system is still developing, and they are saying that

         22  their levels are the same.  How can it be?  I mean

         23  it is unbelievable that they can say this.

         24                 As a nurse, when you give a

         25  medication to a child, it is not the same as an
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          2  adult.  When children come with Hodgkin's, the

          3  doctors calculate precisely how much radiation to

          4  give to these kids to shrink their tumors.  When

          5  they do laser surgery, it is calculated.  Everything

          6  should be calculated.  But these industries have no

          7  calculations.  The FCC is the same, everyone

          8  receives the same amount of radiation.

          9                 My father died of asbestos, after 35

         10  years he was exposed.  At that time asbestos was

         11  wonderful.  And why I am here now, and thank God

         12  that we have someone like Peter Vallone that is a

         13  real person, that is trying to be a people's person,

         14  is concerned with us, and is concerned with his

         15  community and is trying to help us get our rights

         16  back, because right now we have no rights, even our

         17  children's health is in jeopardy right now. And I do

         18  not want to happen with my father with asbestos, I

         19  don't my children, 10, 15 years, 20 years down the

         20  line, or even their friends in that school say that

         21  they have come down with some health problem.

         22                 Thank you very much.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         24  Let's hold the applause, because it will move the

         25  hearing along.  Do you want to be next?
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          2                 MS. HANTZOPOULOS:  Hi, thank you so

          3  much for having us here.  We really appreciate it.

          4  My name is Evie Hantzopoulos, and I am one of the

          5  co- founders of the Astoria Neighborhood Coalition,

          6  and I just want to start off by saying, I did not

          7  wake up one day saying, hey, today I am going to

          8  become a community activist, and I am going to try

          9  to take on the largest industry with the most money

         10  for lobbying in this country.  That really was not

         11  my intention, however, I was forced into this

         12  because antennas went up across the street from me,

         13  facing into my living room window, and my neighbors

         14  and I were outraged, because we had no idea what was

         15  happening.

         16                 And I have to say, you know, I did do

         17  a prepared testimony, I am just going to scrap it

         18  right now, and just kind of speak, because I have a

         19  lot that I want to say, but I will try to be short.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  And we have

         21  your testimony.

         22                 MS. HANTZOPOULOS:  That is right, and

         23  you have it. When I first was faced with the

         24  antennas across the street from me, I really did not

         25  give it much thought in the beginning, because I
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          2  thought, okay, well what is the big deal, cell

          3  antennas.  I had a cell phone at the time, I didn't

          4  think much of it in terms of what it would mean.

          5                 But as I started to do some research

          6  at the urging of some of my neighbors who were

          7  reading up on this, I mean I became very troubled by

          8  what I was finding.  I mean I could go into the

          9  health effects, which Maria talked about, and you

         10  could talk to medical professionals and look at some

         11  of the research that has been done to tell why that,

         12  in and of itself, is enough reason to be concerned.

         13  But I was also just outraged at the lack of policy,

         14  there was no policy for this in our city.  And I

         15  thought, okay, how could this be.  I tried to figure

         16  out what is the policy for a company wanting to put

         17  up these antennas.

         18                 It is an agreement that is done

         19  between a landlord and a companies, the public is

         20  not involved, we have absolutely no rights.  There

         21  is no say, there was no system to track where they

         22  are, how many there are, how many antennas are going

         23  up.

         24                 When you look, you know, in response

         25  to Councilman Comrie's question about, you know,
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          2  what kind of information do you get, I mean, you

          3  have to type in an exact address to find out whether

          4  antennas are there.  You cannot just search by a

          5  Borough, and say, oh, here is what is in the

          6  Borough.  If I wanted to find out in Astoria how

          7  many antennas there were, I would have to submit by

          8  hand, in the wonderful Department of Buildings web

          9  site, it is great, I will give you that, but I would

         10  have to submit every address in Astoria in order to

         11  find that out.  That takes a tremendous amount of

         12  time to do that.  Okay?  So I have to submit every

         13  address to find out whether or not there might have

         14  been a permit issued.

         15                 And then also, when I look at the

         16  permit that was issued, it may or may not specify

         17  exactly what is there.  So there may be some vague

         18  language about telecommunications, but it is not

         19  going to specify antennas per se, it is not going to

         20  say how many antennas.  It might be three, it might

         21  be six, it might be nine, it doesn't specify on that

         22  permit.  So that just seemed ridiculous to me that

         23  that was going on.

         24                 Second, I found out that, at least

         25  according to my own research, in the City Charter
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          2  this process for issuing permits really should be

          3  going through the Board of Standards and Appeals,

          4  and it wasn't.  Because a Deputy Commissioner of

          5  Buildings issued an exemption for the

          6  Telecommunications Companies back in 1998.  So we

          7  said they don't have to go through this process,

          8  they can just file for a basic alterations permit,

          9  instead of going through another process, which

         10  according to the City Charter, I feel that they

         11  should be going through.  And many people are

         12  questioning the legality of this exemption.

         13                 Most troubling is no one could give

         14  me an answer as to how many antennas there were on

         15  my property or in my neighborhood, not my City

         16  Councilman, and that is kind of how I got his

         17  attention on this issue, not the FCC, they couldn't

         18  tell me.  They just said well we issue a blanket

         19  license.  You know, once we issue the license they

         20  put them up.  We don't really, you know, have a list

         21  of where they are or where they are going.  Not the

         22  Department of Buildings, not the City Planner, how

         23  can City Planning not be involved in this process,

         24  it just seemed outrageous to me.

         25                 Then of course despite the health
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          2  concerns expressed by prominent scientists and

          3  researchers, the medical community, and even the

          4  World Health Association, New York City has

          5  virtually no policy on these antennas.  So my

          6  question is, if there is no policy, why is that?

          7                 And to me, I have to say it is

          8  because the industry has lobbied so heavy on this

          9  issue, which I understand, you know, they are out to

         10  make money.  So they want to make this as easy as

         11  possible.  But why is the industry setting policy?

         12                 And when I hear, I am sorry, Ms.

         13  Arnold from the Department of Buildings saying that

         14  the industry has expressed concerns about, you know,

         15  people using that list for whatever purposes they

         16  want to say, well the industry is talking to the

         17  Department of Buildings, I cannot get a meeting with

         18  the Department of Buildings.  Why can't I talk to

         19  them about this?

         20                 I have sent letters, and I get very

         21  lame responses in return.  So if the industry is

         22  setting policy, that has absolutely got to stop.  I

         23  am not saying that they should not be at the table,

         24  but they cannot be the only ones at the table.  You

         25  need to involve the citizens, you need to involve
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          2  residents, you need to hear our concerns.  They are

          3  accountable to their stakeholders, the City Council

          4  is accountable to the constituents, and it is time

          5  that our voices need to heard.

          6                 There is one last thing that I want

          7  to add, since I started my, this Astoria

          8  Neighborhood Coalition along with some of my other

          9  neighbors, a year and a half ago, I have received

         10  countless emails, phone calls, desperate cries for

         11  help from people all around the City.  And I say to

         12  them, have you contacted your City Councilperson,

         13  have you contacted your State Assemblyperson, your

         14  US representative?  And I am sorry to say that many

         15  times, and this isn't true for every City Council

         16  member, but many times they say to me, they tell me

         17  there is nothing we can do.  That is just

         18  unacceptable.

         19                 So we need all of you to be involved,

         20  and I am encouraged to hear that people are speaking

         21  out and are letting their City Council people know

         22  about this.  And I beg you, this bill is really a

         23  no- brainer, as Councilman Vallone said, to keep a

         24  public list is the most basic fundamental thing that

         25  the City should be doing.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you,

          3  you did a good job.  Again, I ask you to keep the

          4  applause down.  You did a good job, but you better

          5  be careful because sometimes community activists

          6  turn into Council members.  That is what happened in

          7  my case.

          8                 MS. HANTZOPOULOS:  I will wait until

          9  you are out, Councilman Vallone.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  I started

         11  out as one of those, so, watch it, Peter.  Next.

         12                 MR. BROOKS:  Yes, I am Ernest Brooks

         13  and I live in a residential loft building in Long

         14  Island City, Queens, not far from PS 122.  And I am

         15  here representing the 9- 01 44th Drive Tenants

         16  Association.  And I am new to the struggle against

         17  the cell phone installation, of the installation of

         18  towers.  Having just last week the T- Mobile arrived

         19  at our building and started putting in, so far they

         20  have put in three distinct bunches of antennas.  And

         21  it is an enormous conglomeration of towers and

         22  cables snaking all over the roof.  Makes me wonder

         23  what we would do in a fire, if we had to run from

         24  one fire exit to the other across the roof, but that

         25  is a different issue.
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          2                 One of the antennae in placement is

          3  about eight feet from where my six- year- old

          4  daughter sleeps.  Another one angles down facing

          5  almost directly at a bedroom where a three year- old

          6  and a five- year- old sleep.  And I had a long

          7  conversation with one of the T- Mobile, I think it

          8  was the head of technical director, and he was

          9  directing the installation.  And he started off

         10  saying how safe he considered the installation. But

         11  then as we talked more and more about exposure

         12  levels, and you know, he said, well, you can call T-

         13  Mobile and get them to come in after it is running

         14  and they will do a test and they will say how much

         15  the radiation level is up from what it was before.

         16  And I said, what would you do, if your child was

         17  sleeping in my bedroom, and you find out that the

         18  radiation level had been raised?  He said, I would

         19  think about moving.

         20                 And if this there technical director

         21  admitting that in fact there is some reason to be

         22  very worried about the RF radiation that these

         23  towers will be giving off, of course, as a father,

         24  as a citizen, you know I want something to be done

         25  about it.  And one of the most basic things seems to
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          2  me is to have some foreknowledge easily available to

          3  people to know where they are going to be sited.

          4  For example, this all just happened, there was no

          5  information, the landlord, I guess wanted the rather

          6  substantial money that he gets for this

          7  installation, didn't consult the tenants.  For

          8  example, we could have told him, you know, don't put

          9  it here right next to a bedroom, put it six feet

         10  further away.  Why is it right at roof level,

         11  shouldn't it be up? Why not on the Department of

         12  School Building, which is across the street, which

         13  is enormous, and is not a residential building? And

         14  these are all questions which cannot be asked

         15  intelligently, if no one knows where these things

         16  are coming.

         17                 And just to reiterate what you two

         18  said, I think we all know the history, the sad

         19  history of new technologies that are considered

         20  safe.  Unfortunately, tumors, cancers take years to

         21  develop, and whether or not, if the studies are

         22  suddenly done in 10 years when we find out, you

         23  know, uh oh, RF radiation really is bad for kids and

         24  for all of us, it will be too late, and be very

         25  expensive for everybody.
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          2                 That is all.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

          4  Now we will take questions, Council Member Vallone.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Thank you.

          6  I think you would make a fine Council member, after

          7  2009.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  But you

          9  could, you see, my Council member hired me, and that

         10  is how he kind of diluted the process for a while,

         11  so you could do that.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Unless you

         13  move into Madeline's district, maybe.

         14                 MS. HANTZOPOULOS:  I like my job

         15  where I am now, so, it is okay.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Yeah, I know

         17  it might depress some of my fellow Council members,

         18  but I am not normally considered a radical.  And I

         19  also did not find myself, wake up one morning and

         20  decide, figure that I would be out in front of this

         21  fight.  But the reason it happened is because of

         22  you, and I just do want to give you recognition for

         23  that.

         24                 You came to my office, alerted me to

         25  this, told me how you got involved, and it took much
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          2  more than that one visit to convince me to come

          3  along.  But it was because of your persistence that

          4  we are all here today.  So I just wanted to thank

          5  you for everything that you have done in this fight.

          6                 Now most of what you mentioned are

          7  going to be topics for another day, so I don't want

          8  to get into, go too much past the list that we are

          9  discussing today.

         10                 So in that respect, Maria, when the

         11  cell phone company, which turned out to be Nextel,

         12  was putting up the antennas next to PS 122, did you

         13  attempt to find out, did you attempt to speak to the

         14  company while that was happening?

         15                 MS. GONZALEZ:  Yes, I did.  I mean,

         16  when I was going to pick up my daughters, my two

         17  daughters from school, I saw just people going in

         18  with cables going into the building. So, of course,

         19  because my daughters go to school there, I stopped

         20  one of them and said, hey, what is that up on the

         21  roof, what is going up there on the roof?  And one

         22  of the guys told me, that they were solar panels.

         23  And also, other parents, because they saw them going

         24  into the building, and you know, putting cables up

         25  that they were asked the same.
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          2                 So we were all told they were solar

          3  panels.  So they did lie, they said they were solar

          4  panels.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  So if you

          6  had a list to go to, to find out what that permit

          7  for, would that have been helpful?

          8                 MS. GONZALEZ:  That would have been

          9  very helpful.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  And Evie, in

         11  your community activism, would a list be helpful to

         12  you and how?

         13                 MS. HANTZOPOULOS:  Well I think the

         14  list would be helpful not only to me as a community

         15  activist, but just for anybody out in the City.  I

         16  mean the public should have a right to know what is

         17  going up and what is going on.  I mean if a

         18  restaurant has to, you know, have public hearings to

         19  put tables on the sidewalk, I mean at a Community

         20  Board meeting, I don't understand why there is no

         21  public discussion about this.

         22                 And there is one other thing I want

         23  to say about the list, is that, you know, there is

         24  so much, I don't want to say clandestine, that

         25  sounds almost evil, but there is so much that we
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          2  just don't know about what happens in terms of the

          3  process between landlords and the companies.  And I

          4  just wonder how does the City keep track of taxes

          5  that the landlords are supposed to be paying on the

          6  revenue that they get from these contracts?  Does

          7  the City know how many contracts exists and how much

          8  revenue is being generated?  How much the landlords

          9  are receiving?  Shouldn't the landlords be paying

         10  taxes on that?  I would think so.

         11                 But if there is no list, if there is

         12  no way that you as City Council people or the

         13  Department of Revenue, or the IRS on a federal level

         14  can keep track of just how much money is out there,

         15  how we do we know that we as residents of New York

         16  City are not getting our fair share of taxes from

         17  this.  So that is just another issue that I just

         18  thought about the other day.  I mean there is no

         19  accountability, there is no transparency, and that

         20  just seems wrong to me.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Thank you.

         22  And as you mentioned before, and I have done some

         23  research into this also, New York City has one of

         24  the lowest threshold levels of oversight in the

         25  permit process here than in any city in the entire
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          2  country.  LA, all the rest of them, they have to go

          3  through, basically what you have to do to put up

          4  sidewalk tables.  Here in New York City, you are

          5  absolutely right, there is almost no, the threshold

          6  is so low, it is almost nonexistent.

          7                 MS. HANTZOPOULOS:  Can I add one more

          8  thing?  Also more antennas do not mean better

          9  coverage, and I think that is really important.

         10  Because when you have too many antennas sometimes

         11  you get dropped signals.  So that is something that

         12  you really are not going to hear, you know, when you

         13  hear from the industry about why we need more

         14  antennas.  But that is not always the case.

         15                 And when there is no planning, and

         16  there is no oversight, and there is no real thought

         17  going into where these are going and how many

         18  already exist.  I mean, I think you are going to run

         19  into problems like that.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Thank you.

         21  I have no more questions on the actual list.  But

         22  the other topics we will go into another day.  Thank

         23  you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Do we have

         25  any other questions?  Council Member Brewer.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  I have a

          3  question about the owners' selected, because I am of

          4  the belief that in many cases some of the owners

          5  selected, I noticed in your testimony, although you

          6  didn't read it, I read it, and you indicated that it

          7  was an absentee owner in particular.

          8                 MS. HANTZOPOULOS:  Yes.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  And I think

         10  probably what goes on with some of these companies

         11  is they pick the easiest person, who perhaps is most

         12  anxious for the funding, and not as conscious about

         13  what is going on in the neighborhoods.  So I just

         14  didn't know if that is your experience?

         15                 MS. HANTZOPOULOS:  I can't speak to

         16  every situation, but certainly across the street

         17  from me, the owner of the building live out in East

         18  Hills, Long Island, that has been fighting any cell

         19  towers from going up in their community.  I mean, I

         20  spoke with the Deputy Mayor, and she was totally

         21  supportive of the work that we were doing here,

         22  because she was trying to prevent them from going up

         23  in her community.

         24                 So the landlord of the building does

         25  not live in the building across the street from me.

                                                            59

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  I would imagine that in many situations it is the

          3  same.  I know that Maria can talk about the landlord

          4  of the building across from PS 122 and what had

          5  happened with him.

          6                 And I also just want to say, I am not

          7  against technology, I am not against cell phones.

          8  The problem is that we have absolutely no policy.

          9  And we really need to be visionary in this, and like

         10  I said, really engage the public in figuring out

         11  what we are going to do about this issue.  Because

         12  it is going to be a growing problem.

         13                 I will let Maria talk about the

         14  landlord across the street.

         15                 MS. GONZALEZ:  The landlord across

         16  the street from PS 122, when they did make a

         17  contract with him, he put them up. And then the

         18  community, and they told, like the controversy on

         19  it, I mean like they are right across the street

         20  from the school, how could you have done this, blah,

         21  blah.  And he said, he really wasn't aware, he

         22  really wasn't aware that there was going to be, you

         23  know this radiation, it was going to harm children.

         24  As a matter of fact he was really like upset,

         25  because his two children went to that school, and
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          2  they are both doctors at this time.

          3                 And he was like I would not want

          4  anything to happen to any of those kids.  And he

          5  wants to get out of the contract, and the company

          6  will not let him out of the contract. He wants to

          7  get out of the contract, he did not know the full

          8  extent of this.  His English is always limited, you

          9  know, and I hear he did have a lawyer present at

         10  that moment.  There is a lot of things, okay.  And I

         11  hear from a lot of people that they come to you like

         12  you won the lottery.  You know, hear it is, you can

         13  make this amount of money, blah, blah, blah.  And

         14  they take it, they get this money, and they don't

         15  realize it.

         16                 In this particular case, he wants to

         17  get out of the contract, he does not want to stay in

         18  this contract.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Thank you

         20  very much.

         21                 MS. GONZALEZ:  You are welcome.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Any other

         23  questions? Council Member Comrie.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Have you

         25  measured the, you said that when the FCC came and
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          2  measured, what was the level that they measured at?

          3                 MS. GONZALEZ:  They couldn't measure,

          4  because they weren't on.  As of right now, they

          5  haven't been activated.  So they came only to the

          6  site, because we had called them, and they said we

          7  can't.  I mean what we told them is like when you

          8  come, you know, what is the whole policy.  Because I

          9  mean the companies are going to tell you we are

         10  within the standards of the FCC.

         11                 So the principal and I asked him, you

         12  know, what do you do when you come on the site?  He

         13  said, we come on the site and we take a level.  And

         14  that level is like only for a second, like I said.

         15  And it doesn't take into consideration, like these

         16  levels are going to be for eight hours a day, and

         17  these kids that are sitting in those classrooms.

         18  And it doesn't take into consideration always the

         19  long- term effects, and they believe it is the same.

         20    The levels are the same for a small child to an

         21  adult.  That is how appalling this is.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  And you said

         23  that you believe that there have been no independent

         24  studies done on this?

         25                 MS. GONZALEZ: There has been no
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          2  independent studies done.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  And you have

          4  researched this?

          5                 MS. GONZALEZ:  Yes, and we asked the

          6  FCC, several parents have called the FCC themselves,

          7  and they said, as of right now there has been no

          8  independent studies done.  There has been

          9  independent studies done in Europe, but the United

         10  States, there has been no independent studies done.

         11  The industry is totally, has total control over

         12  everything.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Okay.  I

         14  mean, I don't know if the industry has control over

         15  independent studies being done.  An independent

         16  study could be - -

         17                 MS. GONZALEZ:  No, no, no, not with

         18  that.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  You know, I

         20  am just curious as to, I mean, I have been getting a

         21  lot of emails on it, and reading both sides, and it

         22  seems to me that there have been some studies done.

         23  I was trying to delineated some of the more prudent

         24  ones, but once I started to look at them, I realized

         25  that most of the people that have been against it,
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          2  haven't cited anything specifically, other than

          3  their own personal fears.  But I am just curious - -

          4                 MS. GONZALEZ:  No, but right now,

          5  there has been no independent studies done on the

          6  long- term effect, on children in the US, there is

          7  none.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  All right,

          9  okay.

         10                 MS. GONZALEZ:  So if you think of it,

         11  how can this happen?  That if you have no 100

         12  percent proof that it is safe, how can you place

         13  them in front of 1,300 children?  This is what I am

         14  saying.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  I hear what

         16  you are saying.

         17                 MS. GONZALEZ:  You see what I mean.

         18  This is what is --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  I am just

         20  confused at --

         21                 MS. GONZALEZ:  It is very

         22  frightening.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  I mean it

         24  really is not a question for you, it is more of a

         25  question for the industry or the FCC.  But I am just

                                                            64

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  curious as to, you know, there wouldn't be nothing

          3  to prevent an independent study from being done.

          4  I'm just curious.

          5                 MS. GONZALEZ:  Well it would take

          6  years, these studies have to take years, money, you

          7  know, it has to be funded. I mean they need billions

          8  of dollars, millions of dollars, and it is going to

          9  take a lot of time.

         10                 MR. BROOKS:  The FDA doesn't give out

         11  drugs until a study to - -

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Okay.

         13                 MS. HANTZOPOULOS:  There have been

         14  several studies that have come out of Europe, and I

         15  would be happy to provide you with a list of those.

         16  And also, there are some new studies that have just

         17  been launched this past December.  And particular it

         18  is going to look at base stations, so in other

         19  words, the antennas. A lot of the studies that are

         20  being done have to deal with cell phone usage, so,

         21  you know, using a cell phone, what is the damage for

         22  that.  But not necessarily what is the effect of

         23  being in close proximity to these antennas.

         24                 But I will be happy to provide you a

         25  list with some research that has been done around
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          2  the world on these issues.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  I have been

          4  getting it.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Council

          6  member, if you could just let me interrupt for a

          7  minute?

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Right.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  The hearing

         10  today is actually about the bill, which does not

         11  cover the health issues. That is a resolution which

         12  was Christine Quinn's.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Yes, I know,

         14  we just keep alluding to it, so I was just trying to

         15  get an understanding.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  So, I mean,

         17  not that I don't sympathize with you, but I think it

         18  would be worth our wild if we kind of stuck to the

         19  bill and the issues related to the bill.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Right, I'm

         21  sorry, but they just keep alluding to it, it just

         22  got my curiosity.  I will behave.  I'm done, thank

         23  you, Madam Chair.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  We know, you

         25  want to get 100 on that test thing, right, yeah.
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          2                 Do we have any other questions?

          3  Okay, thank you, ladies and gentlemen.

          4                 MS. HANTZOPOULOS:  Thank you.

          5                 MR. BROOKS:  Thank you.

          6                 MS. HANTZOPOULOS:  Oh, I also have

          7  just a bunch petitions from people all around the

          8  City asking the City Council to do something about

          9  this issue.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay.

         11                 MS. HANTZOPOULOS:  So, I will submit

         12  them over here.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  See I told

         14  you, she is on her way.

         15                 Okay, we have the New York Wireless

         16  Access Coalition, there are three folks whose names

         17  are here.  I don't know if you all are speaking, if

         18  you are, I hope you all are speaking on a different

         19  issue from each other that is.  We have William

         20  Floyd, Nick La Porte, and Kirk Watson.  Gentlemen,

         21  whoever wants to start may.

         22                 MR. FLOYD: That would be me.

         23  Chairwoman Provenzano and members of the Committee,

         24  my name is William Floyd and I am here today

         25  representing NYWAC, the New York Wireless Access
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          2  Coalition.  Joining me today are two esteemed

          3  members of our Coalition, Nick La Porte from ABOGNY,

          4  and Kirk Watson from the Flushing Community Action

          5  Network.  Thank you for the opportunity to share our

          6  views with the Committee about Intro. 149- A.  I

          7  represent the views of the New York Wireless Access

          8  Coalition.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Mr. Floyd,

         10  could I interrupt you a minute?

         11                 MR. FLOYD:  Of course.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Just once

         13  again, remind you and other folks to stay on the

         14  issue of the bill today, and not the environmental

         15  issue.

         16                 MR. FLOYD:  Absolutely, Council

         17  member.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay, thank

         19  you.

         20                 MR. FLOYD:  Thank you for reminding

         21  me.  I represent the views of the New York Wireless

         22  Access Coalition.  A growing group of businesses,

         23  community organizations and individuals that

         24  advocates for improved access to reliable, wireless

         25  communications and innovations for the millions of
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          2  wireless users in New York City.

          3                 NYWAC has reservations about 149- A,

          4  and urges that a vote on the measure be postponed

          5  for the following reasons:

          6                 Reason one, the City is slated to

          7  soon release a comprehensive study conducted by the

          8  New York City Economic Development Corporation (NYC

          9  EDC) and the Department of Information Technology

         10  and Telecommunications (DoITT) on the state of

         11  telecommunications in New York City and its impact

         12  on economic development.  The final report will

         13  include a recommended action plan for public

         14  policies that will ensure that New York City has the

         15  best telecommunications network possible. The

         16  adoption of any legislation that affects wireless

         17  infrastructure should be delayed until this report

         18  is released so that a comprehensive, citywide

         19  approach to telecommunications can be developed.

         20                 Issue 2, by singling out wireless

         21  infrastructure, Intro. 149- A, in essence, creates a

         22  hit list for anti- siting for individuals or groups.

         23    The potential for intimidation, harassment, and

         24  possible destruction of property prior to, or

         25  following the construction of a wireless
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          2  communications site, could result in a reluctance

          3  among building and property owners to lease space

          4  for critically important wireless facilities. Such

          5  actions will delay the timely delivery of needed

          6  wireless capacity and quality coverage necessary for

          7  wireless consumers throughout New York.

          8                 Last month the Committee on

          9  Technology In Government, Chaired by Council Member

         10  Brewer, held a hearing in Brooklyn where NYWAC

         11  testified.  To discuss whether business in that

         12  community is suffering from a broadband gap.  In

         13  conjunction with that hearing, a 37- page briefing

         14  paper issued jointly by the Council's Infrastructure

         15  Division and the Technology and Government Committee

         16  thoughtfully explored the current status of access

         17  of broadband service in New York.  Most importantly,

         18  the briefing paper offered several options for

         19  broadband policies that should be considered by the

         20  City of New York to address the needs for the

         21  greater consumer access to broadband services.

         22                 In short, we have serious gaps in

         23  wireless service in New York City today.  NYWAC

         24  encourages the Council to approach this challenge

         25  much like it is approaching the issue of closing
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          2  gaps in broadband service, thoughtfully and

          3  deliberately.

          4                 Our City prides itself on having the

          5  best of everything, and we should certainly have the

          6  best wireless communication system available.  To

          7  that end, NYWAC encourages not to rush to create

          8  wireless policies that can work against the needs of

          9  the millions of wireless consumers in New York City.

         10                 Now, if I could, I would like to turn

         11  to my other NYWAC members, Nick La Porte from

         12  ABOGNY, and then Kirk Watson from Flushing Community

         13  Action Network.

         14                 MR. LA PORTE:  Good afternoon.  Thank

         15  you, Madam Chair, and members - -  Is this on?  No.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Oh come on

         17  Nick, you have been up here enough times, you should

         18  know.

         19                 MR. LA PORTE:  I know, if the light

         20  is off, its on.  Excuse me, I am sorry.  Thank you,

         21  Council members and Madam Chair for allowing me this

         22  opportunity to testify on this important matter.

         23  Along with my colleagues on the panel, I am here

         24  today to testify in opposition to Intro. 149- A.

         25  Our problem with this legislation is a requirement
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          2  for separation of alterations permits that have been

          3  issued by the Department of Buildings for the

          4  erection of these antennas, cellular antennas.

          5                 As you know and you have heard, there

          6  are individuals who have certain fears about

          7  reported radiation being emitted from these

          8  antennas.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Pull the mic

         10  closer.

         11                 MR. LA PORTE:  Am I, okay, is it

         12  better?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay.

         14                 MR. LA PORTE:  Those that we have

         15  heard from some of them today that are concerned

         16  about this issue have been moved to react in very

         17  vocal and demonstrative ways.  I don't mean that in

         18  any way that is, you know, condensing, but the

         19  isolation of these permits will allow those who are

         20  not maybe as reasonable as the people who have been

         21  here before, to target buildings where these may be

         22  installed and disrupting residents and tenants, and

         23  spreading unfounded rumors about the ill- effects of

         24  the antenna.

         25                 Particularly, disturbing about this
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          2  is that the science has not shown any detrimental

          3  health effects from their placement.  Additionally,

          4  unsettling to property owners is the Pandora's Box

          5  that this type of legislation can release.  That is

          6  what other permits would be isolated next,

          7  renovation, plumbing, electrical permits?  Someone

          8  will conjure a fear for these types of activities

          9  and creating a nightmares for filings.

         10                 Furthermore, it will discourage

         11  owners from allowing installation on their

         12  properties, just generally reducing the availability

         13  of space for a much needed service, causing cell

         14  phone users to continue to be subjected to dead

         15  zones.  In the age of great telecommunication

         16  progress, we would be taking a tremendous step back

         17  by employing any system that discourages growth.

         18  Repeatedly, elected officials throughout the City

         19  and State have called on cell phone companies to

         20  improve their services and to reduce the number of

         21  dead zone.  This legislation flies in the face of

         22  those efforts.

         23                 Moreover, this legislation will cost

         24  thousand of dollars in lost revenue for buildings

         25  that house low- and middle income tenants, and co-
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          2  op and condo owners who are struggling to survive,

          3  and are in desperate need of revenue streams.

          4                 Finally, with the arguments put forth

          5  today, it is clear that rushing into this

          6  legislation without more deliberate understanding of

          7  all the consequences would be irresponsible.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         10                 MR. WATSON:  Council Member

         11  Provenzano and members of the Committee, my name is

         12  Kirk Watson, and I am the founder of the - -

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Is the light

         14  off?

         15                 MR. WATSON:  It is on.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay, pull

         17  the mic closer to you, please?

         18                 MR. WATSON:  Okay, I am the founder

         19  of the Flushing Community Access Network, and I am a

         20  member of NYWAC, the New York Wireless Access

         21  Coalition.

         22                 Wireless technologies are profoundly

         23  changing how we live, do business, and interact as

         24  people and institutions in New York.  In 2003 my

         25  organization began providing Flushing consumers with
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          2  access to wireless broadband as a low- cost

          3  alternative to DSL and cable modems.  I can honestly

          4  tell you that there is great potential for wireless

          5  technologies in New York in terms of providing a

          6  third pipe or connection to broadband services.

          7  Businesses and consumers are anxious to find new

          8  ways to use wireless technology in their daily

          9  lives.

         10                 My purpose in being here today is

         11  two- fold. First, I am one of the more than 10.5

         12  million wireless service subscribers in New York

         13  City.  Like my fellow subscribers, I depend on

         14  wireless communications every day as I move through

         15  my neighborhood.  However, without the necessary

         16  infrastructure in place, I, and millions of others

         17  will not have the reliable wireless service we need

         18  to run our businesses, talk with families, or to

         19  even call and stay connected with 9- 1- 1 in the

         20  event of an emergency.

         21                 Second, as an entrepreneurial and

         22  small business owner I am excited about the endless

         23  potential that wireless communication has for New

         24  Yorkers everywhere.  That is why I have been so

         25  encouraged by the efforts and support from Council
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          2  Members like Gale Brewer, Letitia James, John Liu,

          3  and many others who are working to develop a set of

          4  initiatives that promote and support wireless

          5  broadband services in New York.  Now, that same

          6  energy, focus and leadership must be applied to

          7  developing a strategic citywide plan that addresses

          8  all aspects of wireless communications.  To develop

          9  such a plan will require time and commitment from

         10  this City Council.

         11                 Intro. 149- A raises a couple of

         12  question that could potentially have a negative

         13  impact on new wireless technologies that may be used

         14  to provide telecommunications such as Wi- Fi and Wi-

         15  Max Services.  For example, how will wireless

         16  broadband equipment be affected?  These potentially

         17  could provide telecommunications services also.

         18  There are a number of community organizations, local

         19  community groups that are erecting antennas to

         20  provide wireless internet access, and also provide

         21  wireless Telecommunication services over the

         22  Internet.  So some of those issues regarding these

         23  new wireless type of containers need to be

         24  addressed.  How can wireless consumers be assured

         25  that deployment of critical infrastructure will not
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          2  be delayed by the publishing of separate of wireless

          3  facilities?

          4                 As a resident of a Borough that is

          5  under- served by broadband and wireless

          6  connectivity, I hope you will ensure that whatever

          7  decision you make in regards to wireless technology,

          8  you work to provide a level playing field for all

          9  boroughs of New York, and equal access for all.

         10                 Thank you for hearing and considering

         11  my concerns. I am happy to answer any questions you

         12  may have, but let me first as Nick La Porte to make

         13  some comments about this matter.  He did already.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay,

         15  Council Member Vallone you have a question?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Yes, thank

         17  you.  First let me welcome all of my good friends

         18  and lobbyist into the room. We have William Floyd,

         19  and Nick La Porte, and in the back I see Tom McMahon

         20  and Harry Tunoulis (phonetic), and Ciraga Siren,

         21  wow, this is, all my good friends, all I hope making

         22  a lot of money here, all on a no- brainer.  Boy you

         23  guys are going make some money when the real bills

         24  come down the line.

         25                 But Mr. Floyd, let me first start,
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          2  since you happen to be closest with your testimony.

          3  You said, you gave two reasons why we should not

          4  adopt this.  Number one, you said, "It is premature

          5  because the City is slated to soon release a study.

          6  The final report will include a recommended action

          7  plan for public policies that will ensure that New

          8  York City has the best telecommunications network

          9  possible."  Well do you agree that having an idea of

         10  where these cell phone towers exist should be part

         11  of any plan recommended by the City?

         12                 MR. FLOYD:  Thank you for the

         13  question, Council member.  My viewpoint is this, I

         14  think if the City is going to come out with a policy

         15  on telecommunications overall and how it affects New

         16  York City, regardless if it is the Mayor's side or

         17  in the City Council side, there should be a

         18  coordinated approach on how that is put forth, vis-

         19  a- vis, public policy, quite simply. Regardless of

         20  whether you know where the sites are or not.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  So premature

         22  doesn't mean bad idea, just means we should delay

         23  it.  And while we delay more cell phone towers go

         24  up, which we will never be able to know where they

         25  are.  Sorry, that is not persuasive.
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          2                 The second one is you are saying that

          3  we create a "hit list."  Is there harassment going

          4  on now, of the landlords of where these cell phone

          5  towers exist?

          6                 MR. FLOYD:  I am not aware of any.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Neither am

          8  I, actually. So we are worried about something that

          9  has not happened, despite the fact that these things

         10  are completely visible right now as we speak.

         11                 Mr. La Porte, you said, "these

         12  landlords are going to be denied an income stream."

         13  About how much do they get paid right now for the

         14  cell phone antennas?

         15                 MR. LA PORTE:  I believe that there

         16  is about a $2,000 a month stipend that they receive

         17  for this.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Two

         19  thousand, up to about how much?

         20                 MR. LA PORTE:  As how many antennas

         21  are on the roof.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Okay, and

         23  what is the normal - -

         24                 MR. LA PORTE:  I just wanted to

         25  respond to something you asked Mr. Floyd that he
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          2  couldn't answer, but I can. Have any owners been

          3  harassed by this?  Yes, there has been community

          4  outreach to stop and then to try to have, on the

          5  Upper West Side where I live, to try to have some of

          6  these antennas removed.  I live in a co- op where

          7  actually one of the shareholders was an activist in

          8  this area.  So yes, it is happening.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Where it has

         10  happen, yes, there is a big difference between

         11  harassment and discussion, first of all.

         12                 MR. LA PORTE:  Well I didn't say

         13  where it was just a discussion.  I said that

         14  landlord buildings were being targeted by people to

         15  go after the owners to take these things down that

         16  are already up.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  When you say

         18  go after, what does that mean?

         19                 MR. LA PORTE:  Sending them letters,

         20  demonstrating out in front of the buildings, putting

         21  flyers all over the neighborhood.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  And when

         23  this occurs, does it - -

         24                 MR. LA PORTE:  They are not burning

         25  down buildings, if that is what your are --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Right, there

          3  has been no illegal conduct that you know of?

          4                 MR. LA PORTE:  No, I didn't say it

          5  was illegal conduct.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  I have to

          7  second that. The people that I know that are

          8  protesting have always been extremely polite and

          9  followed every law that I know of.

         10                 MR. LA PORTE:  It is a question of

         11  imposing a belief on a building owner, my

         12  perspective is, imposing a belief on a building

         13  owner and discouraging something that they have a

         14  right to do.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Well we can

         16  disagree as to whether this is a belief or whether

         17  this is a health concern.

         18                 MR. LA PORTE:  Well there is no

         19  science, that is what concerns me.  If there were

         20  science, I would be more concerned about it.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  I disagree,

         22  and that is a discussion we will have on another

         23  day.

         24                 MR. LA PORTE:  Sure.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  This is
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          2  Madeline Provenzano's hearing and I don't want take

          3  up all her time.  I mean it is her hearing, but on a

          4  different topic.

          5                 As probably Thursday you can come

          6  back, we will be voting on the Health Study that I

          7  am asking for the City to do, since there are no

          8  independent studies of the effects of multiple

          9  antennas in a small area.

         10                 MR. LA PORTE:  And maybe Councilman

         11  if something comes from that study, then maybe I

         12  would have a different position at that point.  But

         13  right now - -

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  And I say,

         15  don't wait. We waited with asbestos, we waited for

         16  lead paint, let's do this the right way this time so

         17  people don't lose their lives why we delay.

         18                 Now you said that they make $2,000,

         19  they make upwards of that, they make 10, 15 thousand

         20  dollars in many instances.

         21                 MR. LA PORTE:  As I said depending on

         22  the number of antennas.  You asked me what they were

         23  getting, $2,000 per antenna.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Have you

         25  ever run into a situation where that money coming to
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          2  a landlord has led to any sort of rent abatement for

          3  the tenants?

          4                 MR. LA PORTE:  No, but I can tell you

          5  that that money coming in, a revenue source for the

          6  affordable, and I am concerned for the low- income

          7  and middle- income affordable housing units that it

          8  prevents the causes not to raise costs.  It is not

          9  an abatement, we're not looking for abatement, it is

         10  not going to happen.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Absolutely.

         12                 MR. LA PORTE:  What you are going to

         13  do is prevent further increases.  When buildings are

         14  struggling, this is another way of getting rent

         15  revenue, revenue into the building without raising

         16  rents.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  But you

         18  would assume with the thousands of these things that

         19  have gone up, 10, 15 thousand dollars a month that

         20  somebody would be able to provide a rent abatement

         21  to a tenant someplace in New York City, but it

         22  hasn't happened yet.  So I am not all that concerned

         23  about these income sources.

         24                 MR. LA PORTE:  But you haven't seen

         25  any rent increases in those buildings where there
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          2  has been --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Well I don't

          4  know that for a fact, but I will speak to some of my

          5  activists.

          6                 Now let me get this straight, this

          7  bill will not affect your negotiations with the

          8  landlord, correct?

          9                 MR. LA PORTE:  I am sorry, I don't

         10  know what you are - -

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  This bill

         12  will not come into play at all when you negotiate

         13  whether to put up cell phone antennas on the

         14  building of a landlord.

         15                 MR. LA PORTE:  It may if they feel

         16  that they are going to be targeted, they may not

         17  want to do this.  Does it directly stop them from

         18  negotiating, no, of course, not.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  And this

         20  bill does not affect your requirements when you file

         21  a permit?

         22                 MR. LA PORTE:  No, it just isolates

         23  this type of a permit, which concerns me down the

         24  road for other types of legislation.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  So all it
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          2  does is isolate this permit.

          3                 MR. LA PORTE:  Makes it public.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Makes it

          5  public, and yet, based on your testimony, cell phone

          6  service as we know it is going to end.

          7                 MR. LA PORTE:  I didn't say that.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  I just don't

          9  see it.  I am taking - -

         10                 MR. LA PORTE:  Well you are taking

         11  liberties from my testimony, Council member.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Councilmanic

         13  license, yes, so thank you, sorry, but - -

         14                 MR. LA PORTE:  I wouldn't do that

         15  with your statement.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  It has been

         17  done.  I am going to be done for now, Madeline.  I

         18  might come back, but thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Council

         20  Member Avella.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  Thank you,

         22  Madam Chair.  I have to tell you, listening to your

         23  testimony, the only thing I want to do is become a

         24  prime sponsor of this bill.  Tell me why, I mean, I

         25  have not heard one single, logical reason why you
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          2  are against this bill.  I mean the very fact that

          3  you are saying harassment, that the landlords can be

          4  intimidated, there could be flyers, well they can do

          5  that now.  All somebody has to do is walk down the

          6  block, see the antenna, get the address, go on the

          7  Building web site and figure out that they have

          8  applied for that. So they can do that now.

          9                 MR. LA PORTE:  I'm assuming you are

         10  looking at me, so I am assuming you are addressing

         11  this to me.  But when the antenna is up, it is up,

         12  and people there can see that, that is done.  This

         13  is an issue of a permit being filed for and having

         14  somebody being harassed even before the antenna is

         15  up, and it happens.  It happens on a regular basis,

         16  not only for this, for any other kind of public

         17  issue that they think that building owners or

         18  property owners are imposing on the community.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  But there is

         20  a reason why permits are on the web site so that the

         21  community knows exactly what is going on in terms of

         22  building.

         23                 MR. LA PORTE:  But they are not - -

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  So why should

         25  this not be separated?  Why are you so afraid of the
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          2  public knowing, on a more comprehensive fashion than

          3  they do now, because they can figure this out, it is

          4  just time consuming, to have a separate item in the

          5  Department of Buildings for these permits?  I

          6  haven't heard one logical reason why you are against

          7  it.  I have heard all these other side issues - -

          8                 MR. LA PORTE:  You are taking one

          9  industry, you are taking one industry and you are

         10  identifying them separate from all the other types

         11  of permits in the City.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  How?

         13                 MR. LA PORTE:  By separating them as

         14  individual permits.  You want a site set up in the

         15  Department of Buildings where one industry's permit

         16  is going to be isolated for the world to see.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  And how does

         18  that negatively effect the industry?

         19                 MR. LA PORTE:  Well I will let the

         20  industry's spokesperson speak to that a little bit

         21  better than I can.

         22                 MR. FLOYD:  Well Council member as I

         23  mentioned in the testimony, as I said, it provides a

         24  hit list for those individuals who would seek to

         25  intimidate or harass those building owners who would
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          2  seek to put, for an alteration permit for this

          3  equipment.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  But again,

          5  they can do that now.

          6                 MR. FLOYD:  And sometimes they do.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  But it

          8  certainly is not pervasive.  I mean I have not read

          9  about any situation in the newspapers where this is

         10  happening.

         11                 MR. FLOYD:  And I am sorry if I gave

         12  the impression that it was pervasive, I didn't mean

         13  to do so.  I am just saying that it gives the

         14  potential, it puts a bullseye right on it.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  I mean, you

         16  know it is interesting because we all use cell

         17  phone, we all want to make sure that the City has

         18  the best up- to- date equipment and

         19  telecommunication system.  But I think the industry

         20  and its lobbyists are doing the industry a big

         21  disservice in opposing this legislation.  I see no

         22  reason, based upon your arguments here today why

         23  this bill should not go forward.

         24                 And I say to the author of the bill,

         25  Peter, you are not going to put in the necessary
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          2  requirements, I want to be a prime sponsor of this

          3  bill.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

          5  Ladies and gentlemen, we have been joined by, where

          6  did you go, Councilwoman Letitia James.  And we need

          7  a vote from her on the previous bill, so if you will

          8  indulge us.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Thank you.

         10  May I be excused to explain my vote?  Well I vote

         11  aye on it.  Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Councilwoman

         13  Brewer has some questions.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Yes.  Thank

         15  you very much. I have a question for Kirk Watson,

         16  because one of the issues I am concerned about is,

         17  as you know I do support cellular use, and I support

         18  it to go to under- served areas, because I want

         19  libraries, and I want schools, and I want affordable

         20  housing and low- income housing to have the same

         21  opportunities that people, particularly in terms of

         22  the digital divide.  And you know, when you say

         23  antennas, it is not as clear what we are talking

         24  about.  Because now with Verizon doing different

         25  kinds of connections in Staten Island on their roll
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          2  out.  And sometimes, you know, merging of all these

          3  different technologies is not clear, and we will

          4  probably find different kinds of items in our

          5  neighborhood that we didn't even know existed.

          6                 But one of the questions that I have

          7  is, for Kirk, we need to do this responsibly, that

          8  is the issue.  And I think you do it responsibly.

          9  You work with the Flushing Community in a

         10  responsible manner.  So because I am afraid that in

         11  many cases understandably the companies are going to

         12  find the easiest place without thinking about what

         13  the impact might be.  So my question is to you,

         14  Kirk, how do you go about thinking about getting

         15  coverage in Flushing, how do you do it, because you

         16  do it responsibly?

         17                 MR. WATSON:  One of the things that

         18  we first tried to do, is we tried to work with the

         19  local community.  We tried to see what their needs

         20  are regarding the wireless coverage, and then we

         21  determined the location of our antenna based on

         22  that.  We also work with the City Council with

         23  Councilman John Liu, and I have spoken to him on a

         24  number of occasion in identifying what his

         25  constituents, what his area's needs and where this
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          2  antenna should be located  So I work closely with

          3  the community and with the City Council, especially

          4  John Liu to identify the correct locations for

          5  antennas.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  So when you

          7  have to put up some antennas in order to get

          8  coverage, do you do it with public/private

          9  buildings, or how do you go about thinking about how

         10  to get the coverage in Flushing?

         11                 MR. WATSON:  Well it is really where

         12  we can, well there is a huge issue of you know

         13  leasing the roof space, and you know how much that

         14  costs.  So it is really where we can get affordable

         15  access for, you know, for development for the

         16  deployment of an antenna.  And working out something

         17  with building owner within the coverage area that

         18  has been identified by our community.  So I am doing

         19  this through discussion, doing this through

         20  consensus.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  And the

         22  consensus would be people who are part of the

         23  Flushing Community, who are part of trying to wire

         24  Flushing so that people can get access.

         25                 MR. WATSON:  Yes, exactly.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Lower cost

          3  access than would be traditionally available.

          4                 MR. WATSON:  Yes, right now there is,

          5  the industry is changing a lot, technology is having

          6  a huge impact.  You are seeing not just, right now

          7  we are addressing cellular communication through the

          8  typical cell phone towers.  However, with new

          9  wireless broadband technology the same type of voice

         10  coverage, or voice cell communication can be done

         11  through these Wi- Max as you mentioned, through the

         12  commercial --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Most people

         14  don't know what they are, but that is okay Kirk,

         15  keep going.

         16                 MR. WATSON:  Through the emerging

         17  wireless communication technologies.  So this bill

         18  needs actually to be rethink it, in a sense that it

         19  needs to be part of a comprehensive policy and that

         20  the City puts forward.

         21                 I think our organizations rule is not

         22  that there is anything terribly wrong with the bill,

         23  but the huge impact on the huge need for wireless

         24  coverage in local communities, and we really need to

         25  think about, you know, the policy that we have, and
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          2  how that policy may affect wireless coverage.  And

          3  also, we understand that there is a huge health

          4  concern.

          5                 And you know when you come to your

          6  health and wireless coverage, it is obvious.  So it

          7  really needs to have a policy that is comprehensive

          8  and not just - -

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  So what you

         10  are saying is that in Flushing, where you are

         11  obviously using some wireless, which is a different

         12  situation, but where you are using antennas you are

         13  coming to some kind of consensus as to whom you are

         14  going to approach, and I guess, hopefully you do pay

         15  attention to make sure it is not across the street

         16  from a school or any kind of mass antennas.  And I

         17  hope you are not putting them up and down the sides

         18  of the buildings, I know you are not.

         19                 But these are the kinds of issues

         20  that I wish everybody would consider.

         21                 MR. WATSON:  Yes, I mean, these new

         22  technologies, antennas are kind of insignificant.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Talk right

         24  into the mic, Kirk.

         25                 MR. WATSON:  With these new
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          2  technologies the antennas are really, I mean this

          3  could be an antenna, so you can hardly see from the

          4  ground.  And then we really need to understand the

          5  radiation issue.  So we do take all of those into

          6  consideration.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay, thank

          8  you very much. I guess what I am trying to say is

          9  that maybe this would also be a discussion at some

         10  of the Community Board levels because as the

         11  technology changes, we are actually going to find

         12  that there is more wireless, and perhaps there are

         13  less antennas.  But who knows, I am just saying that

         14  between the Wi- Max, and what Verizon is doing, it

         15  is a different, changing world.  On the other end, I

         16  think we could be more responsible about where they

         17  are placed.

         18                 Thank you very much, Madam

         19  Chairwoman.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         21                 MR. WATSON:  I would like to add a

         22  comment. Certainly, with the new technologies you

         23  may have a greater safety in the sense, you know,

         24  with these Wi- Max and with these other

         25  technologies.  You know cell phone use a different
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          2  technology.  The new technologies that will provide

          3  similar telecommunication coverage eventually will

          4  be safer.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

          6  Gale is our techie in this Council.  Thank you,

          7  gentlemen.

          8                 Next panel, and again, I ask you to

          9  stay away from the environmental issue and try to be

         10  brief.  Catherine Yankopoulus, no, okay, excuse me?

         11  Okay.  April Sepanski; Glenn Ecababian; Lavinia

         12  Galatis; that is three. Please and try to keep it

         13  brief, Glenn do you want to start?

         14                 The ladies start, and try to brief.

         15  Right, whatever.  If it is off, you are on.  That is

         16  good.

         17                 MR. ENCABABIAN:  Yes.  My name is

         18  Glenn Encababian, and I am a member of Community

         19  Board 8, Public Safety Committee and Education

         20  Committee up in the Bronx.  And I have worked with

         21  Assemblyman Rubin Diaz, Jr.'s Office up in the

         22  Bronx, as well, regarding this issue.

         23                 The lead paint salesman, the asbestos

         24  salesman, cigarette salesman, the Agent Orange

         25  salesman, their job is to sell, their job is to make
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          2  money.  Their job is not to protect the children or

          3  the public.

          4                 Your job is to protect the public,

          5  and especially protect our children.  What we have

          6  worked on very hard in the Bronx is cell phone

          7  antennas and keeping them away from our schools and

          8  our children.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Glenn, you

         10  are going to stay away from the environmental issue,

         11  correct?

         12                 MR. ENCABABIAN:  Correct.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Because that

         14  is not what we are discussing here today.

         15                 MR. ENCABABIAN:  Okay.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  You can come

         17  back Thursday and talk about it at Chris Quinn's

         18  hearing.

         19                 MR. ENCABABIAN:  All right, so if I

         20  get onto that, stop me very quickly.

         21                 To answer a question why are they

         22  concerned, the industry, about having this

         23  legislation?  I will tell you why they are concerned

         24  about this legislation.  This is from Crown Castle

         25  International Corp. Who are owners, operators, and
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          2  managers of wireless communication sites.  In their

          3  report to the United States Security and Exchange

          4  Commission, on May 30, 2003, they warned their

          5  investors that they may suffer from future claims,

          6  if radio frequency emissions from equipment on their

          7  sites and towers are demonstrated to cause negative

          8  health effects.  That is why they are concerned.

          9  Because if there is a listing of every antenna that

         10  is out there, and then if there is evidence to prove

         11  to everyone's satisfaction that they are significant

         12  health affects, then it is very easy for them to be

         13  sued, or the landlords to be sued.

         14                 So I think, in a nutshell, that

         15  probably answers every question as to why the cell

         16  phone industry is so vehemently, is against this,

         17  along with the Coalition that was here, that I think

         18  represents landlords and businesses.  They don't

         19  want to have a tracking of who they are or where

         20  these are in case things are proven to everyone's

         21  satisfaction later on that these are dangerous.  I

         22  think that answers every question regarding why they

         23  are here.

         24                 Also, I think everyone can agree that

         25  the firefighters, not only in New York, but around
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          2  the world are amongst the bravest people in the

          3  world.  And this goes back to what the fellow from

          4  the Coalition said a few minutes ago about rumors

          5  and unfounded fears.  Those guys run into burning

          6  buildings.  I don't think they are scared or have

          7  fears of too many things.  But on August 24, 2004,

          8  the International Association of Firefighters called

          9  for a moratorium of new cell towers on fire

         10  stations, until health affects can be studied. And I

         11  am only mentioning that because I am answering his

         12  question about unfounded fears and chicken little.

         13  These people are not chicken little type of people.

         14  But even they're concerned about it to the point

         15  where they called for a moratorium, this is the

         16  United States and Canada, the firefighters.

         17                 And again, if this ends up getting

         18  bigger, there will be a tracking of where they are,

         19  where they are located.

         20                 Someone said there was absolutely no

         21  studies, I just happen to have this, and I guess you

         22  guys probably can get hundreds of studies.  New Cell

         23  Phone Linked to Tumors, I think it was the

         24  Councilman here who asked.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay, again,
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          2  we are --

          3                 MR. ENCABABIAN:  Right, but it just

          4  was brought up, so I just wanted to bring that.

          5                 So I could talk probably for an hour

          6  about this, but I think to end very quickly - -

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  We prefer

          8  that you don't.

          9                 MR. ENCABABIAN: - -  to end very

         10  quickly, I think those are the major points as to

         11  why the cell phone industry is so much against this

         12  without giving any specific reasons other than that.

         13                 Okay, thank you very much.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         15  Ladies, one of you.

         16                 MS. GALATIS:  Good afternoon.  Thank

         17  you for having us here.  My name is Lavinia Galatis,

         18  I represent the Community Educational Council of

         19  District 30, and also as a parent of a child in PS

         20  122.

         21                 First of all, I would like to bring

         22  my support for this proposed bill, and to ask you to

         23  approve it because this is maybe a small step, but

         24  it is the first, but it is a very important step

         25  towards having some control of what is going on in
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          2  respect with cell phone antennas and where they are

          3  placed.

          4                 I am an individual person and I want

          5  to rent an apartment.  I need a place to find out if

          6  across the street or in the building that I am

          7  moving or I intend to rent an apartment there is an

          8  antenna, I have to have that right to know if I want

          9  to be by it or not.  If I want to be suspected to

         10  RF radiation, be it safe or not safe, I have to have

         11  that right.

         12                 If the industry has the right to put

         13  their antennas wherever they want, if the landlord

         14  has the right to sign the contract with them, why I

         15  don't have the right to know about them before the

         16  fact, not after?  Why do they have to impose on me,

         17  why if I have both an apartment, and across the

         18  street they install an antenna, I have to face it

         19  and accept it? I have to have the same right as

         20  everybody else, so I have to know about them.

         21                 And if I would know about them

         22  before, I would be very nicely getting myself out of

         23  the situation, and they wouldn't be harassed.  But

         24  because the process is not in place, and because we

         25  do not have a right, and we do not know about ahead
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          2  of the time, then we end up in situation, which yes,

          3  we have to go after them because they're on roofs on

          4  the market and whoever wants to get them, they can

          5  find them. That radiation, especially on the

          6  children, are not safe, there are warnings all over

          7  the world.  I don't want to get in that issue.

          8                 I am hear to support this bill, and

          9  to ask all the members of this Council, from the

         10  bottom of my heart, to please pass it.  It is not a

         11  big deal, but it is a big step for us, for our

         12  individual citizenship of this city.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         15                 MS. SEPANSKI:  Good afternoon.  My

         16  name is April Sepanski, and I am a parent of three

         17  children.  My youngest son, he is seven and a half

         18  years old, and he attends PS 122.  His classroom is

         19  directly across the street from the building that

         20  has the antennas that have not yet been activated,

         21  but if not stopped, they will be.  I didn't notice

         22  that these antennas were there, just one day I

         23  looked up, and there they were.  Because of hearing

         24  something about the parents had sent, the PTA had

         25  sent something in our children's folders, I heard
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          2  about this.

          3                 What bothers me is the amount of

          4  parents that you see here are very few, that just

          5  proves that we don't know what is going on around

          6  us.  If parents knew what was going around, and what

          7  their children were being exposed to, they would be

          8  screaming.  We are like farmer, except our crop is

          9  our children, and anything that comes up that is

         10  going to hurt our crop, like weeds or any type of

         11  pesticides that affect our crop and its growth, we

         12  would like to know.

         13                 This is why it makes me very upset to

         14  hear Maria Gonzalez get up here and say about all

         15  these facts, and I knew nothing about them.  We

         16  don't know, and we have to at least know this.

         17                 What is happening now, this is a new

         18  technology, and because we are now in the space age

         19  and everything is getting new, there are a lot of

         20  things we don't know about, and we expect our

         21  government to try to keep us aware of it and protect

         22  us against potential hazards.  In the City now there

         23  is a lot of things going on with industry, large

         24  industry is, you know, they have the money, so, you

         25  know, they have the voice, and as the other lady
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          2  said, they have the lawyers, and we don't have all

          3  of this.

          4                 So I am here trying to represent the

          5  thousands of parents that are not here because they

          6  are not aware, they are not up in the balcony, they

          7  are not in the back, they are at home right now

          8  picking up their kids on 21st Street with the

          9  antennas facing them.  My son is in his classroom

         10  seven hours a day, five days a week, and I didn't

         11  know what was going on.  And these antennas, I have

         12  just been told while sitting here, from Ms.

         13  Gonzalez, the antennas are on 31st Street, which is

         14  our main shopping strip in Astoria where we are.  We

         15  have our grocery stores, our bakeries, the Butcher,

         16  parents out with their carriages, parents with

         17  little children who don't attend school. If we don't

         18  know where they are, what is going to happen in a

         19  couple of years when the children start getting

         20  sick, when they are young adults and teenagers?  The

         21  lawsuits, what is going to happen, I cannot imagine

         22  that the City Council, which I know is probably is

         23  not true, who is going to be responsible when they

         24  come and say, why didn't we know this?  We have to

         25  know it.
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          2                 I know the industry is not going to

          3  cooperate because of their interest, and that is

          4  understandable.  But we are here as residents, at

          5  the City Council, to stand up for our right.  And we

          6  hope that you respect them.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

          9  Okay, I thank all of you.  Jane Builder from T-

         10  Mobile, and David Bronston.  Is David here, from

         11  Cingular Wireless?  Jane, you didn't turn in one of

         12  these sheets, so you will have to later fill out one

         13  of these to be on the record.  Okay will one of you

         14  start?

         15                 MR. BRONSTON:  Yes, thank you.  Madam

         16  Chair and members, my name is David Bronston, I am

         17  an attorney with the firm of Wolf Block (phonetic),

         18  and I represent Cingular Wireless. Thank for the

         19  opportunity to comment on Intro. 149.

         20                 While we respect the intentions of

         21  the sponsor and wish to work with and inform the

         22  community, we feel the legislation is premised on

         23  misinformation about the wireless industry's

         24  technology, infrastructure, and safety standards.

         25  We urge you and the proponents of the bill to review
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          2  the hard science and real facts about the

          3  technology, rather than base important public policy

          4  on misinformed science that is strongly bias against

          5  the wireless industry.

          6                 You have heard about that these

          7  facilities have to be licensed by the FCC, and the

          8  FCC built in a substantial safety factor in creating

          9  acceptable limits of maximum RF emissions. Most of

         10  these wireless service facilities create maximum

         11  exposures that are only a small fraction of the

         12  FCC's limits, often hundreds or thousands of times

         13  below the limit, and it drops off exponentially you

         14  move away.

         15                 The wireless service providers self

         16  inspects, self monitors, and self regulates to

         17  ensure it stays within these standards.  If it fails

         18  to, it will forfeit its FCC licenses and will have

         19  to cease operations, and essentially go out of

         20  business.

         21                 Both United State Senator Schumer,

         22  Mayor Bloomberg have criticized the wireless service

         23  industry in New York regarding dead spots.

         24  Regulations such as proposed in Intro. 149, will

         25  slow down the installation of facilities, and will
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          2  lead to poor service, fewer facilities, and more

          3  dead spots, particularly as business and residential

          4  subscribership and usage increases.  Most

          5  importantly the ability to locate and communicate

          6  with people in an emergency will be adversely

          7  impacted by this legislation, citywide.

          8                 We question the premise and need for

          9  this legislation, you have heard already that every

         10  Department of Buildings Alterations Permit, such as

         11  those issued for these facilities, is already part

         12  of the public record, accessible on line by address,

         13  and block and lot on the City's BIS system. With

         14  data entry of all relevant permit application

         15  information. The detailed and certified plans are

         16  publicly filed, and I believe available at the DOB

         17  Borough Offices.

         18                 This proposed legislation

         19  discriminates against the wireless industry by

         20  creating a separate list of aggregated information

         21  regarding these permits and sites, and only these

         22  sites.  Without a substantial record that we frankly

         23  do not see from the Council, such discrimination is

         24  arbitrary.  The City does not require this of

         25  permits regarding water towers on rooftops, sidewalk
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          2  vaults, HVAC equipment on rooftops, or other cable

          3  or telecommunications equipment, massive satellite

          4  dishes, that are on or near a buildings.

          5                 At the same time, this wasn't

          6  mentioned yet, but we consider this information

          7  proprietary and confidential information about our

          8  network that should not be readily available in an

          9  aggregated format to our direct or indirect

         10  competitors.  In addition, the reference in the

         11  legislation to include in the database any antenna

         12  for "similar service or any structure related to

         13  such service"  may be impermissively vague and

         14  overwrought.

         15                 As wireless voice services converge

         16  with wireless data and video service providers, does

         17  that clause include emergency wireless broadband

         18  public safety facilities, wireless automatic vehicle

         19  location systems, wireless emergency service

         20  facilities, commercial or residential microwave, or

         21  fixed wireless dishes, satellite dishes, or radio or

         22  TV transmitters? If it does, it is going to capture

         23  a lot more than I think it was intended to.

         24                 Finally, we believe that the current

         25  system is well balanced in that smaller rooftop
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          2  installations are certified, and as Phyllis Arnold

          3  said, certified or reviewed and approved at the DOB

          4  level.  But any non- rooftop or large facility over

          5  400 square feet, or a monopole (phonetic) in a

          6  residential district is still required to go through

          7  a special permit proceeding at the Board of

          8  Standards and Appeals, with full community notice,

          9  full community input and involvement.  It goes to

         10  the Council member, it goes to Community Board vote.

         11                 And Cingular Wireless has followed

         12  the Buildings Department Rules and installed these

         13  facilities responsibly and in strict compliance with

         14  these rules resulting in a very strong construction

         15  safety record.  Cingular is willing to work together

         16  with communities to produce and maintain a reliable

         17  and safe wireless network throughout New York City.

         18                 Thank you again for the opportunity

         19  to speak with you today.  On behalf of Cingular we

         20  would be happy to meet with any of the members to

         21  discuss the legislation on wireless services

         22  industry in New York City.  Unfortunately, John Lee

         23  Antonio Cingular Wireless Government Affairs

         24  Director could not be here today in person, but will

         25  be available to meet with members of the Committee
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          2  at their earliest convenience.

          3                 And I just want to correct a couple

          4  of points that I have heard already.  To Evie's

          5  point the companies do take the Tax ID numbers of

          6  all their landlords, they report the information,

          7  1099s go out, I can assure of you that.

          8                 And to Council Member Brewer's point

          9  that the industry does not target absentee

         10  landlords.  The siting is based on very complicated

         11  formula of where sites are needed, where the

         12  capacity, where the coverage gaps are.  And many co-

         13  ops use the sites, which we know are owned and

         14  occupied by the shareholders.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 MS. BUILDER:  Good afternoon, my name

         17  is Jane Builder, and I am the Senior Manager of

         18  Government and Community Relations for T- Mobile

         19  USA.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Move the

         21  microphone closer please?

         22                 MS. BUILDER:  In this dual role, I am

         23  the liaison with the City of New York, which has a

         24  vital interest to serve its citizens by providing an

         25  environment where strong and dependable wireless
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          2  services can thrive.  I am also the main point of

          3  contact with community groups and the people living

          4  and working in this City's neighborhoods, who want

          5  to use mobile phones and wireless devices in

          6  apartment living rooms, elevators, garages, office

          7  buildings, while walking in the street, and while

          8  riding in cabs and buses.

          9                 The business that we are in is not

         10  simply the business of providing people with

         11  wireless phones and network service.  We are also in

         12  the business of helping people stay connected in a

         13  City where their business and personal relationships

         14  are constantly under pressure, and where they expect

         15  and rely upon these connections to work no matter

         16  where they are.  As such, we need the ability to

         17  follow their comings and goings, and provide service

         18  which literally works everywhere in the City even in

         19  residential neighborhoods.  The infrastructure that

         20  we are building today is the communication

         21  infrastructure for both today and for the next

         22  century.

         23                 We support the citizens' desire to

         24  know what is occurring in their neighborhoods.  In

         25  fact residents already have access to this
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          2  information by going to the NYC.gov web site,

          3  Department of Buildings and entering an address.

          4  Users can access wireless telecommunications

          5  information about any building in the City.  You

          6  only have to know an address, once you know the

          7  address you can then search every building on the

          8  block.  It is an amazing tool, I don't believe this

          9  tool was is in existence last year when we had this

         10  hearing, or at least it wasn't to the point that it

         11  is today.  Certainly it serves the purpose of

         12  allowing concerned citizens to access the

         13  information about what is going on in and around

         14  their neighborhoods.

         15                 This bill, however, would require the

         16  Department of Buildings to compile a separate

         17  blueprint that would basically pinpoint the location

         18  of the entire City's wireless infrastructure, both

         19  new and pre- existing sites.  Because whenever you

         20  go back into upgraded a site, or put a generator in

         21  a site, that would make it onto the list.

         22                 It is a segregated list, as we have

         23  heard that the bill is calling for singling out one

         24  industry's infrastructure. The information contained

         25  in this document compromises proprietary

                                                            111

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  information.  What you may not know is that we don't

          3  share that information with our competitors.  They

          4  don't know the design of our network, we do not know

          5  the design of their networks.  The disclosure of

          6  such design network data creates a competitive

          7  disadvantages for service providers who want to

          8  build up their networks to meet growing customer

          9  demand.  It does pose a security risk, potentially,

         10  by providing a blueprint, a road map of the wireless

         11  infrastructure grid across New York City for use by

         12  anyone regardless of intent.

         13                 The proposed legislation will hamper

         14  the wireless industry's ability to build and operate

         15  networks capable of meeting New Yorkers demands and

         16  telephone and data service without drop calls and

         17  dead zones.  The bill is anti- consumer, anti-

         18  business, and anti- technology.  For many New

         19  Yorkers a mobile phone is their only means of

         20  communication and they need a fully functioning

         21  network in case of emergencies.  If the bill is

         22  passed, this Council will be unintentionally

         23  impeding the wireless industry's ability to meet the

         24  demands of these citizens.

         25                 I would like to thank this honorable
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          2  Council for its time, and I would like to introduce

          3  my colleague, Cody Sanford, who is in charge of T-

          4  Mobile Engineering, and who is available to answer

          5  any specific technical questions or questions

          6  regarding networks that you may have.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

          8  I would just like to, I mean, I met with some of

          9  these folks, I would just kind of like to repeat

         10  some of my thoughts.

         11                 You mentioned in response to what one

         12  of the witnesses said that if you go in with an

         13  address you get the address for that block.  Well

         14  that really isn't enough, they may not want that

         15  block, they may want two blocks away, and five

         16  blocks away, and eight blocks away.  So going in the

         17  way the system is presently is not easy for the

         18  average community person. They still have to punch

         19  in, if they are looking for different areas, they

         20  have to find addresses on it, it is very

         21  complicated.

         22                 It is easy for the folks that you

         23  seem to have a fear of, and I repeat, and I think

         24  the folks that you are afraid of are your

         25  competition and the so- called bad guys.  But they
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          2  are all smart enough to go in there under any

          3  circumstances and find out what they want to find

          4  out.

          5                 So I think we really need this bill

          6  for the folks, like the ones we have here who

          7  basically want to know what is going on in their

          8  community.  And again, we talk about technology, and

          9  not sharing technology with competition.  Maybe we

         10  should start thinking about some kind of a

         11  legislation, and I don't know what Peter has in

         12  mind, but I know he has got like lots of stuff,

         13  where you are required to share your technology so

         14  that we don't have to have a proliferation of cell

         15  towers.

         16                 And basically, you know what my

         17  opposition is to them, they are ugly.  Do we have

         18  questions?  Peter, of course.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  I do have

         20  stuff planned, thank you, Madam Chair.  Ms. Builder,

         21  apparently you support the public's right to know,

         22  but you just want to make it as difficult as

         23  possible.  How exactly, you said that there were

         24  security concerns about providing a road map for

         25  people to use in whatever way possible?  Spell that
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          2  out for us, what is this road map going to be used

          3  for?

          4                 MS. BUILDER:  We have a speaker

          5  coming up that will address, I think, the specifics

          6  of that line of questioning.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  No we don't,

          8  we don't have no more speakers that are speaking in

          9  opposition to the bill, or that person has not

         10  signed in.

         11                 MS. BUILDER:  She did sign in.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  All right,

         13  well I don't know who you are referring to, but,

         14  okay.  She is qualified to speak to those issues.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Well you

         16  made the statement so I would like to have your

         17  opinion on this.

         18                 MS. BUILDER:  My opinion is - -

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Because I

         20  think this panel wins the scared tactics awards.

         21  Now we have security concerns, we have our ability

         22  to communicate being eliminated, let's deal with the

         23  road map and security concerns first.

         24                 MS. BUILDER:  Well I use the Building

         25  Department web site, let's start there, and I found
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          2  it extremely easy to use.  And I found that

          3  telecommunications for a given building was flagged

          4  a telecommunications.  I was able to access a few

          5  blocks in an area of a neighborhood, and I felt that

          6  were I living in that particular neighborhood, that

          7  would be sufficient for me, if that were my concern.

          8                 As far as the road map is concerned,

          9  we know longer have out on the web for public

         10  consumption our power grids.  There are a lot of

         11  things that are being, that we traditionally shared

         12  openly, that we no longer share with the public.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  So you are

         14  comparing the cell phone antennas on the tops of

         15  two- and three- family homes without power grids?

         16                 MS. BUILDER:  It really has not to do

         17  with whether they are on top of two- and three-

         18  family homes.  Some of these cell facilities are

         19  designed with extra battery backup in the event of a

         20  blackout.  Some of these are designed to be able to

         21  handle increased capacity, if there is a slight

         22  emergency in the City, I am not talking about 9/11.

         23  But when the slightest thing happens in the City,

         24  everybody reaches for their cell phone, the Ferry

         25  crash downtown, I guarantee you every single base
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          2  station of every carrier was loaded with  - -

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  And how does

          4  would this list have anything to do with that?

          5                 MS. BUILDER: - -  with calls.  Well,

          6  as the lady from the Building Department mentioned

          7  it is a discussion that we would be happy to have

          8  with the Council off line.  Yes, there are- -

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  It is a

         10  discussion you don't have in public because it is

         11  ridiculous.  The terrorists are not coming after our

         12  cell phone antennas, so stop scaring people.  Okay,

         13  that is what you are trying to say, it is not going

         14  to happen.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  I would

         16  like, you know what Peter, let me just, the other,

         17  Kathryn Condello, are you, okay, because we got a

         18  message that you had left.  Okay, so if you want to

         19  come up and sit with these folks, it might be more

         20  convenient.  I would prefer that you don't come up

         21  by yourself. I only have one more panel after you?

         22  No, don't go away, the folks that testified, you

         23  don't have to leave, you can stay there, good.

         24                 Peter, I am sorry, do you?  Do we

         25  have any other questions then?  Council Member
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          2  Brewer.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  I have a

          4  question about the following, which is the siting

          5  issue, in other cities, small cities around the

          6  United States, I think David knows because he does a

          7  lot of traveling on this topic.  The cities are

          8  concerned because towers show up in corn fields, or

          9  sometimes in the town, and everything is smaller so

         10  it is more evident.

         11                 But my question is in that case the

         12  town, the municipality tries to get the companies to

         13  share.  Now it might be with these antennas, because

         14  those are more towers, and we are talking here

         15  antennas.  So my question is, is it, this is

         16  something that technologically I don't know the

         17  answer to, when you are talking about a tower, lots

         18  of times the companies don't want to share, for

         19  whatever reason and the municipality pushes that so

         20  that there is a less of a proliferation.  But is

         21  that something that can be done in the antenna

         22  world?  Because one of the issues seems to be that

         23  there seem to be several small antenna on a

         24  building.

         25                 MR. BRONSTON:  Yes, the rules require
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          2  that these be smaller antennas, there are limited to

          3  400 square feet on the rooftop.  So that is why it

          4  is harder to co- locate a lot on rooftops.  But let

          5  me turn it over to the construction manager for T-

          6  Mobile.

          7                 MR. SANFORD:  Yes, thank you for the

          8  question, Council member.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Identify

         10  yourself, please.

         11                 MR. SANFORD:  Sorry, my name is Cody

         12  Sanford.  I am the Area Director for Engineering

         13  Operations for T- Mobile.  In specific regards to

         14  tower locations, there is actually a pretty

         15  significant industry that focuses on co- location on

         16  towers.  But there is no shoring of actual

         17  technology on those towers.  And each carrier has

         18  independent antenna installations on that tower.

         19                 The reason for this is that, frankly,

         20  we all use very different technologies, we broadcast

         21  at different frequencies, and they are just not

         22  compatible to share the antennas themselves.  Which

         23  is the same challenge that we face on a rooftop

         24  trying to share our rooftop technology.  Now we

         25  share the rooftop and co- locate on the rooftop,
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          2  itself, but we couldn't share the same antennas to

          3  broadcast.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay.  So is

          5  there, I don't know this, is there a maximum number

          6  of antenna permitted by the Buildings Department on

          7  each roof?  I know, obviously, if you are a carrier

          8  and you want coverage in that area, you are going to

          9  search for an area.  But is there a maximum?

         10                 MR. SANFORD:  I'm sorry,

         11  Councilwoman, I don't have that information.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  I just

         13  wondered if you knew.

         14                 MR. SANFORD:  Yes, I don't have that

         15  information, sorry.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay.  And

         17  when you go looking for coverage, I know David

         18  mentioned that it is based on where the need is.

         19  But it is a very, I know I have talked to some of

         20  your colleague, it is a stressful, I understand from

         21  your perspective, and also from the residents, how

         22  do you go about searching?  Do you go to the owner's

         23  records, how do you find people that who would be

         24  interested in locating an antenna?

         25                 MR. SANFORD:  Very simply, as we
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          2  mentioned earlier, it is all usage and consumer

          3  demand.  So whether that be from a capacity

          4  standpoint or from a dead zone perspective.  We

          5  locate an area where we need facility to provide

          6  coverage.  There are customers either need from

          7  making calls that are existing that network is

          8  exhausted, or from a coverage perspective.  We

          9  identify the area, and then we have agents that go

         10  out on our behalf and contact landlords in that

         11  small area, to see if they have any interest in

         12  leasing the rooftops to us.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay, and do

         14  you locate primarily, or site primarily on rooftops,

         15  or do you also do, what I hate, which is to go up

         16  and down the side, which would also be considered an

         17  antenna?

         18                 MR. SANFORD:  Again, I apologize for

         19  not knowing exactly what you are talking about, are

         20  you referring to the cable?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Yes, the

         22  cable that also has an antenna in it.  David knows,

         23  yes, on the side of building.

         24                 MR. SANFORD: Right the antennas on

         25  the sides of buildings, yes, we do have those
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          2  throughout the City, and typically the reasons they

          3  are on the sides of the buildings is that the

          4  rooftops are too high.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Right, I am

          6  very familiar with that problem.

          7                 MR. SANFORD:  The cabling themselves,

          8  though, actually those aren't antennas that is just

          9  a means of connecting- -

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  No, I know,

         11  but there is an antenna there, just that there is

         12  cable holding it so that it can go up.

         13                 MR. SANFORD:  Those all require

         14  alterations permits through the City, which we have

         15  to obtain.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Right, no, I

         17  am aware of that.  Right.  Thank you, Madam Chair,

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  We don't

         19  have any other questions, but Ms. Condello, maybe

         20  you want to give your testimony, but I would

         21  appreciate it if you make this very concise, we have

         22  your testimony here, so.

         23                 MS. CONDELLO:  Fundamentally

         24  Cingular, Nextel, Sprint, and T- Mobile USA do

         25  oppose 149- A, legislation that does seek to create
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          2  a centralized database that would be publicly

          3  accessible in the City of New York.  While we do

          4  believe that the initiative is well intentioned, it

          5  does have the potential to threaten and undermine

          6  advances in wireless infrastructure security in New

          7  York City by creating this publicly accessible

          8  aggregation of critical infrastructure information.

          9  Information that is currently protected under the

         10  Critical Infrastructure Information Act of 2002, or

         11  what I will be referring to as the CII Act and CII.

         12                 The role that wireless networks play

         13  in our daily lives and during emergencies is

         14  critical.  While some might not fully recognize it

         15  at this point in our industry today, during an

         16  emergency while wire- line networks generally pop up

         17  in terms of capacity up two or three times factor,

         18  the wireless networks pop up in terms of capacity

         19  demands in the 10 to 15 range.  Such aggregated

         20  information can provide a blueprint as indicated,

         21  and could create a significant vulnerability to

         22  these infrastructures, making it easier, yes,

         23  terrorists, but perhaps more importantly and on a

         24  more routine and unfortunate basis, criminals of

         25  both the physical and cyber level, to undermine,
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          2  impair, or disabled the devices and networks that

          3  serve as the primary form of communications during

          4  disaster.

          5                 This is not to suggest that such

          6  information should not be made available to those

          7  with appropriate need.  But mechanisms already exist

          8  to access this very information by individuals or

          9  entities that have legitimate need for such

         10  aggregated information.  Providing such information

         11  to the general public, however, is inconsistent with

         12  the treatment of such information under the Critical

         13  Infrastructure Information Act, but there are

         14  processes which will allow you to do and indeed

         15  access it.

         16                 I will describe those processes as

         17  follows:

         18                 The telecommunications and the IT

         19  sector - -

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Ma'am, you

         21  appear to be following his text, I would ask you to.

         22                 MS. CONDELLO:  Okay, fundamentally,

         23  the Telecommunications and IT sector, as well as all

         24  other sectors in the critical infrastructure

         25  environment, have what are referred to as
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          2  information sharing and analysis centers.  These

          3  information sharing and analysis centers are places

          4  in environments and processes and procedures that

          5  are put in place so that you can, in fact, share

          6  this kind of information and share it at a means

          7  that is consistent with the CII Act of 2002.

          8                 There are two types of information

          9  shared within these environments both emergency and

         10  non- emergency CII.  The information that the

         11  Council seeks to aggregate is considered "non-

         12  emergency" classification, and is generally the far

         13  more prevalent type.  Under these sort of

         14  environments the sharing of information is handled

         15  through request to the telecommunications ISAC,

         16  Information Sharing and Analysis Center.  These

         17  ISACs and the Telecommunications one, in particular,

         18  is the oldest one in the United States and has been

         19  around since 1991.  In 1998 the President given the

         20  success of that particular ISAC created similar

         21  ISACs among all critical infrastructures, just in

         22  the event that you need information about pipelines

         23  or electrical utilities.  These ISACs are designed

         24  to share information among each other, within each

         25  other, go across all sectors and in all critical
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          2  infrastructures.

          3                 The sharing of this non- emergency,

          4  critical infrastructure information is a primary

          5  Department of Homeland Security Objective, and is

          6  included in the model for access by a people who are

          7  appropriately, have appropriate access or need for

          8  this.

          9                 The City of New York already has a

         10  properly controlled access to the wireless industry

         11  infrastructure ISAC, and it will be able to access

         12  this data pursuant to the CII Act and the DHS

         13  protocols.  The City of New York has access to this

         14  to the New York State Office of Cyber Security and

         15  Critical Infrastructure Coordination, also called

         16  the CSCIC was established in September of 2002 by

         17  Governor Pataki to address New York State's Cyber

         18  Security Readiness and Critical Infrastructure

         19  Coordination.  In addition to addressing the New

         20  York State issues for the State of New York, this

         21  operation hosted in New York also host the multi-

         22  state ISAC, which serves 49 states and the District

         23  of Columbia.  This New York based multi- state ISAC

         24  is the secure conduit through which New York City,

         25  other state municipalities and other appropriate
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          2  entities can request information from the

          3  telecommunication sector.  The information exchange

          4  process between the Telecommunications ISAC and the

          5  multi- state ISAC is well understood, well

          6  recognized, and is exercised on a daily basis.

          7                 I am also advised by Counsel that

          8  Intro. No. 149 A, if enacted and implemented as

          9  proposed, would indeed raise significant and

         10  potentially legal issues under the Critical

         11  Infrastructure Information Act.  The Act provides

         12  that CII voluntary submitted and share with covered

         13  federal agency for use by the agency is protected

         14  from public disclosure, except under appropriate

         15  circumstances.

         16                 As discussed we do operate under this

         17  kind of ISAC mode, and therefore, suggest that the

         18  City's proposed implementation of how they would

         19  like to monitor wireless protocols for putting them

         20  may be in violation of the CII Act, and at a minimum

         21  the City might want to consider and take the legal

         22  obligations under the CII Act to see if this

         23  proposed Intro. 149- A is appropriate or in

         24  violation of that Act.

         25                 In summary, the proposed change to
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          2  the Administration Code would aggregate wireless

          3  critical infrastructure information in a way that is

          4  not currently, readily available to the public.

          5  Such aggregation is inconsistent with current

          6  federal protection of such information and could

          7  undermine and potentially harm the physical and/or

          8  cyber security of wireless infrastructure in the

          9  City.

         10                 Procedures established through DHS,

         11  and which the City and appropriate entities have

         12  access through their own multi- state ISAC, under

         13  the aegis of the CII Act are our preferred and

         14  proper method for the dissemination of this type of

         15  information.

         16                 Any questions, Ma'am?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         18  Council Member Vallone.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Yes.  Ma'am,

         20  are you an attorney?

         21                 MS. CONDELLO:  No, I am not.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  No, I am

         23  not.  Well advise your Counsel that I have read what

         24  you have provided here, and it is in no way, no way

         25  has anything to do with what we are discussing
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          2  today.

          3                 First of all, a cellular phone

          4  antenna is not covered as critical infrastructure,

          5  even under non- emergency critical infrastructure.

          6                 And second of all, from your own

          7  testimony, this information has to be voluntarily

          8  submitted and shared with a covered federal agency.

          9                 This information will not be

         10  voluntarily submitted to New York City, it would be

         11  done by law. It is not being shared with any federal

         12  agency.

         13                 There are so many reasons that this

         14  is completely not applicable.  I would just like you

         15  to share that with your Counsel.  Perhaps they can

         16  send me something different than this.

         17                 Let me ask you a question, I believe

         18  listening to you testify that you said that one of

         19  the many federal acts and agencies that you

         20  mentioned already has a list of where every cell

         21  antenna exists in New York City right now?

         22                 MS. CONDELLO:  No, I did not say

         23  that.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Okay.  Well,

         25  if it did exist, then I would ask for it.  And if it
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          2  doesn't exist, I want one.  And that is what we are

          3  doing here today.  So thanks.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay, thank

          5  all of you. I have a couple of more folks, Alexander

          6  Medwedew, Joan Bondell, Francis Conant, there is

          7  also a Veronica, but she previously testified, so we

          8  are only going to call up, Francis.  You are the

          9  last panel, and again I ask you --  Did you both

         10  testify last time?  Okay, we will just put it on the

         11  record that you are in favor of the bill.  Because

         12  actually if you testified, well the rule usually is

         13  if you testified last time you.  All right one of

         14  you come up, you pick, toss a coin, I don't know.

         15                 Who do we have, identify yourself for

         16  me please, so that I know?

         17                 MR. MEDWEDEW:  Alexander Medwedew.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay.

         19                 MS. BONDELL:  Joan Bondell.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay.  And

         21  Veronica is going up.  Okay, you are the last panel.

         22    Again, I ask you to be brief.  One of you start,

         23  please?

         24                 MR. MEDWEDEW:  All right, I will

         25  start.  My name is Alexander Medwedew.  I live at
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          2  200 West 106th Street in Manhattan, Upper West Side,

          3  that is the intersection of 106th and Amsterdam.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  I also

          5  remind you that we are not discussing the

          6  environmental issue, so I would appreciate it if

          7  none of you address that.

          8                 MR. MEDWEDEW:  Okay.  In the spring

          9  2002, my building had a cell tower constructed on

         10  top of it.  And for the last three years we have

         11  been having problems in our building as a result of

         12  this installation.  Even though the installation

         13  lasted five to six weeks, as I have said, we are

         14  having problems.

         15                 The tenants were informed of this

         16  installation. It was actually hidden from us, we

         17  never saw building permits posted on the building as

         18  required by law for this structure they put up.  We

         19  had numerous workmen coming through the building and

         20  they were identified as roof repair people, rather

         21  than electricians and structural workers for this

         22  cell tower.

         23                 We were never informed of a 125- foot

         24  cranes arriving at our building on two occasions.

         25  And on one of those occasions we had an accident
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          2  because of one of the cranes delivering heavy

          3  equipment to the roof.  The tenant was injured who

          4  lived in an apartment directly below the

          5  superstructure for the cell tower equipment.  He was

          6  hospitalized, and even today, he still suffers pain

          7  from those injuries to his neck and chest, and there

          8  is litigation still in effect.

          9                 The cranes were the only hint of this

         10  installation occurring in our building.  Unsafe

         11  conditions were resulting from the overloading of

         12  the roof, causing the ceiling to collapse. The

         13  police, when this occurred the police evacuated the

         14  entire building until it was deemed safe to re-

         15  enter.

         16                 We also have continuing power

         17  problems in our building, as a result of this

         18  installation.  The power feeder cable to our

         19  building is deemed inadequate for this installation.

         20  So they had to shut off power in our building of

         21  numerous time during the installation to connect the

         22  equipment, and they found the cable just could not

         23  do the job.  So in recent months this cable actually

         24  failed, and half of our building was blacked out

         25  over night.  And we have constant reminders of this
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          2  with flickering lights in our building.  We have a

          3  power cable running across the sidewalk, which we

          4  step over every day, which is a temporary repair for

          5  this problem.

          6                 Cell towers are being installed all

          7  over the City. And many tenants in these buildings

          8  are not aware of these cell towers being located in

          9  their buildings.  They are actually being sort of

         10  hidden from them, in many cases, by disguising these

         11  towers, or just never being told about it.

         12  Landlords need to tell us about these cell towers.

         13  They need to tell us about work going on in our

         14  buildings.

         15                 And surrounding my building at 106th

         16  and Amsterdam, we have about 20 cell towers.  One

         17  Hundred and Sixth Street, itself, has four towers,

         18  Broadway and 106th, Amsterdam and 106th, Manhattan

         19  Avenue and 106th, Central Park West and 106th, and

         20  that is roughly about 2,000 feet of street with four

         21  cell towers.  We have towers at 2nd and Amsterdam,

         22  we have a tower at 109th and Amsterdam, we have a

         23  tower at 107th and Columbus, we have a tower at

         24  104th and Columbus, actually two towers at 104th and

         25  Columbus.  We have a lot of cell towers in our area,
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          2  and they are just not documented.

          3                 So I feel this legislation is not

          4  going far enough.  We need to have a provision

          5  stating that the tenants need to be notified of

          6  towers being installed in their building, by

          7  landlord, cell phone company, it just has to be

          8  done.  We just cannot have them put things in our

          9  buildings that we don't know about.

         10                 Full disclosure of all existing

         11  sites, and they need to be properly identified.  We

         12  need warnings posted for radio frequency radiation.

         13                 A building's suitability as a cell

         14  tower site should be assessed.

         15                 Map of site coverage must be

         16  provided.

         17                 Accurate assessment of power usage,

         18  and availability of power for the site, needs to be

         19  addressed.

         20                 Permits should be conspicuously

         21  posted on construction sites.

         22                 Permit fees should reflect the actual

         23  cost of the installation, including all

         24  communications equipment installed at that site, not

         25  just the structural and the electrical.
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          2                 These towers have thousands of feed

          3  of cable, they have hundreds of feed of raceway,

          4  conduit.  They have thousands of pounds of

          5  structural steel being installed, transceivers, and

          6  it is not included in the cost of this construction.

          7    And the permit fees, they are just not being

          8  reflected in the permit fees.  A hundred thousand

          9  dollar or a half million dollar site being listed as

         10  a $25,000 installation is just wrong.

         11                 Residential zoning is ignored.  We

         12  have commercial and industrial uses in these

         13  buildings, and they are residential only zoning.

         14                 We have additional problems related

         15  to building maintenance.  We have people coming in

         16  and out of the building, we don't know about, we

         17  don't who they are.  And all current sites need to

         18  be re- evaluated.

         19                 Shielding of residences located close

         20  to antennas have to be addressed.  And violations

         21  and fines imposed on these sites have to be

         22  collected.  The building had $7,500 worth of

         23  violations and fines.  And if you check the building

         24  site it says that the $7,500 were never collected on

         25  the fines.
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          2                 We need to think of what happens to

          3  the technology when it becomes obsolete, and what

          4  happens to the equipment remaining in the buildings.

          5                 The communications companies retain

          6  the right to use the sites afterwards.  And also, we

          7  shouldn't allow these companies and the realtors and

          8  the landlords to police themselves.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you,

         11  next.

         12                 MS. BONDELL:  My name is Joan

         13  Bondell.  I reside at 350 Central Park West in a

         14  rent- stabilized apartment on the 8th floor of a 17-

         15  story building.  I am also a senior citizen who is

         16  affected by this technology, just as children are.

         17                 I would like to show you some

         18  photographs so you will know what I am talking about

         19  as I proceed.

         20                 I think those photos make it clear

         21  what Gale Brewer was speaking about when she said

         22  installations on the wall of a building, those are

         23  five- foot antennas, there are four of them on the

         24  8th floor of a 17- story building.  You see me at my

         25  bedroom window, my bed is behind that.
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          2                 Okay, this was, as far as the need

          3  for tenants to be notified, there was no

          4  notification, there was no notice that work was

          5  being done in the building.  The only way that I

          6  found out about this was turning off my shower one

          7  summer morning, alone in an apartment, and hearing

          8  men's voices in my bedroom. When I finally came out,

          9  I found them standing at my window sill on a

         10  scaffold installing these things at an open window.

         11                 The building has a buzzer system, we

         12  have an intercom, the landlord has my phone number,

         13  nothing.

         14                 These were installed by Nextel

         15  Communications close enough to my window that I can

         16  touch them.  They also, as you can see, beam

         17  directly at another bedroom window less than 20 feet

         18  away in the same building.  There is a rooftop which

         19  is not used.

         20                 Besides the cell room in the basement

         21  there is signal equipment on the roof.  A sign on

         22  the door leading to the roof warns people not to

         23  enter.  You can see that sign there, as RF radiation

         24  may exceed FCC allowable levels.  There are no signs

         25  on any of the other doors, three doors right up on
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          2  the top floor. All doors to the roof are kept open.

          3                 I had my apartment tested for

          4  microwave radiation three times by a licensed

          5  engineer prior to the installation going on line, no

          6  detectable levels were found anywhere in the

          7  apartment.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay, again

          9  we are asking you not to talk about the

         10  environmental issues, but I must say, I find it very

         11  interesting that that sign says that it exceeds the

         12  FCC regulations, so that is pretty scary.

         13                 MS. BONDELL:  The public has access

         14  to that area. After months of tenant protest and

         15  media coverage, it was on channels 1, 7, and 11, and

         16  it was in Columbia Newspaper, Nextel retaliated by

         17  placing an additional five- foot antenna on my

         18  bedroom wall.

         19                 Okay, you can read the rest.

         20                 Diane Rainie of Nextel told me that

         21  the installation was necessary, it had to be there

         22  in case of a terrorist attack.  And I could be

         23  arrested under the Patriot Act for not allowing

         24  Nextel entry to my home in order to monitor what

         25  they call their site.  I have a registered letter
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          2  from her at Nextel arriving at my home at 9:00 a.m.

          3  In the morning stating this.

          4                 All I have asked of Nextel that they

          5  insulated the walls so as to shield my home.

          6  Nextel's executive vice president, Tom Kelly, has

          7  not returned my calls, nor responded to my letters

          8  regarding this request.

          9                 Despite the Telecommunications Act of

         10  1996, other cities have implemented requirements

         11  that make it extremely difficult for the industry to

         12  do installations like this, causing them to take the

         13  path of least resistance and look at more

         14  appropriate places.  Moreover, when all else fails

         15  the industry can and must be made to install proper

         16  shielding.

         17                 I am hopeful that whatever

         18  regulations are enacted regarding future

         19  installations, the one or two unusual and clearly

         20  hazardous ones, such as this on my bedroom wall,

         21  will be addressed.  Most rooftop installations are

         22  clearly visible to the public.  A hidden one, such

         23  as this, is not seen by anyone, it is in the back of

         24  the building facing a courtyard.  I don't know about

         25  these sites that these people were saying that you
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          2  can use to find out where these are.  I do know that

          3  if you like at the site for our building, he had a

          4  permit on these dates to do some construction work

          5  in the basement.  And even if it said in

          6  Telecommunications, there is no way of anyone

          7  knowing where this was put.  And this is not a

          8  place, even if we are not discussing health issues,

          9  this is not a place where it is necessary in order

         10  to have cellular coverage in a City.

         11                 I am the only person according to

         12  Nextel living with this in New York.  Also the

         13  Telecommunications industry, itself, needs to know

         14  when one corporation is gaining an unfair advantage

         15  by doing something hazardous and secretive, just

         16  allowing for, this would allow for better self-

         17  regulation in the industry itself.

         18                 I also would like to add that the

         19  people who are here to testify in favor of this bill

         20  today, have not been paid to be here.  In many cases

         21  they have taken time off from jobs, time from then

         22  families, because we care about the City and what is

         23  happening.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         25  Next.  No, which one of you is testifying, you are,
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          2  no, one.  Are you man and wife, you are the couple.

          3  Let one of you testify, choose. Ah, you go, you are

          4  by the mic, let him sit there.

          5                 MS. CONANT:  Yes, but he also always

          6  have very good things to say, I hate for him to lose

          7  that choice, so I rather, you know, he is not as

          8  shy.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Which of you

         10  is more brief, that is the one that we want.

         11                 MS. CONANT: Well it is not a question

         12  of more brief, we both have something different, a

         13  different statement to make.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Well, but I

         15  need to end this hearing.

         16                 MS. CONANT:  Yes, anyhow, my name is

         17  Veronica Conant, I am a retired medical librarian, I

         18  worked at Hunter College for many, many years, where

         19  I headed the House Professions Library.  I live in

         20  Midtown Manhattan at 45 West 54th Street in a 13-

         21  story high Gold building, where I am on the Gold

         22  Boards, for those of you are interested in the

         23  landlord's perspective.  I am also president of a

         24  new West 54th and 55th City Block Association.

         25                 In 2002, our building wanted to
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          2  generate funds, so this is from a responsible

          3  landlord's point of view, is what I am saying.  And

          4  we wanted to do it by having an AT&T microcell base

          5  station installed.  However, we educated ourselves.

          6  So when we decided to read about it, we realized

          7  what it would mean and at first, when the Board

          8  voted it was split.  But then we decided to involve

          9  the entire residents in our building, and we held a

         10  special meeting and voted against the contract.

         11  AT&T at that point threatened to sue us.  It was

         12  really an unpleasant type of situation.  We hired a

         13  lawyer, and since nothing started yet, that was the

         14  good side of it, that we haven't started actually,

         15  even though no money changed hands, so we were able

         16  to cancel the contract.

         17                 Now during that period, I visited a

         18  commercial site where a microcell base station was

         19  already functioning. This was one of those, which

         20  Council Member Brewer was asking about.  It has

         21  three parts that is a compressor on the outside,

         22  there is the radio transmitter equipment in a

         23  separate room in the basement, because it is very

         24  noisy.  And also the antenna was kind of small and

         25  touched to the front of the building about 20 feet
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          2  above the ground, below a window.  The setup looked

          3  extremely intrusive and there were heavy cables all

          4  over.

          5                 In our building the concerns there

          6  that the antenna was to be placed outside the window

          7  of a young couple with small children.  Had we not

          8  reversed the contract, they would have sued us and

          9  moved.

         10                 A special concern of ours, in our

         11  family was that my husband has a pacemaker.  There

         12  are also three dentist offices in the building where

         13  interference might have matter.

         14                 So comments about the Bill 149, which

         15  I am all for.  Please, also, in addition to doing

         16  this bill and going ahead with DOB, you know writing

         17  and recording permits, please reinstitute that

         18  applications for base station installations once

         19  again, go to the Board of Standards and Appeals.

         20                 Call public hearings to inform all

         21  those affected, they need to know.

         22                 Require an Environmental Impact

         23  Statement giving detailed specification about the

         24  equipment and levels of radiation.

         25                 Our contract was minimal about the
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          2  details.  In fact, the report we received contained

          3  several inconsistencies, incorrect statements, I

          4  should say.

          5                 Also check periodically the safety of

          6  the equipment and make sure radiation levels are

          7  below the allowed RF radiation limits.

          8                 To create a registry and a map of all

          9  base stations in New York City would be wonderful.

         10  This has already been done in a number of other

         11  places.

         12                 I will give you a folder after this,

         13  and on it is, for example, in the UK, United

         14  Kingdom, there is a wonderful registry.  San

         15  Francisco has created a registry of base stations.

         16  So it is possible, and I don't think it is going to

         17  be a problem for anybody.

         18                 So allow new base stations installed,

         19  you see, once we know is in, once there is a map,

         20  then you know where there is a need, and you know

         21  where there isn't a need.  So there is no need to do

         22  what isn't necessary.

         23                 Follow the precautionary principle

         24  which is used in the United Kingdom based on this

         25  report, describe in the folder.  Also used in a
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          2  number of European countries, and this important to

          3  control the number of base stations in a dense,

          4  urban environment.

          5                 Once a database has been created,

          6  then it will be really important to start monitoring

          7  health problems, and evaluate geographic problems,

          8  which I know will happen at another hearing.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Right,

         10  again, please, eliminate the environmental issues,

         11  we are not discussing that today.

         12                 MS. CONANT:  Yes, so I am not going

         13  to go into all the details that this radio frequency

         14  non- thermal affects numerous in the medical

         15  literature, again, included in the package.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Right, but

         17  we are not discussing that at this hearing.

         18                 MS. CONANT:  No, but it is there.

         19  But what is important that whatever is installed

         20  will be there 24 hours a day, seven days a week,

         21  years.

         22                 Last summer, the City Administration

         23  went around the City Council and made a deal with

         24  six Telecommunications companies to have 18,000

         25  antenna installed on lamppost in all the boroughs
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          2  for $25 million.  This was a most irresponsible act,

          3  just at the time when the Administration was worried

          4  about terrorists and bombs.  It would be more

          5  realistic to be concerned about RF radiation all

          6  over the City.  And its health effects on million of

          7  New Yorkers.  I hope that the City Council will

          8  challenge this deal.  Our health should not be for

          9  sale.

         10                 I am very grateful for you placing a

         11  regulation, for placing the regulation of the base

         12  stations on the agenda. You make local laws, through

         13  them you are responsible for the health of all New

         14  Yorkers.  At present we have no idea how many

         15  rooftops and microcell base stations are in our

         16  City.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Again,--

         18                 MS. CONANT:  I have one more

         19  sentence.  We only know that numbers are rapidly

         20  increasing, especially with the 18, 000 all over the

         21  streets of New York.  This is human experimentation

         22  and exploitation without consent.

         23                 Please regulate base stations and

         24  have the DOB involved in the process and continue

         25  with this.
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          2                 Thank you for the opportunity.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

          4  Thank you all very much.

          5                 I would like to also, we have

          6  testimony here from Assemblyman Michael Gianaris,

          7  who is of course supporting the legislation, and it

          8  will be put into the record.  Okay, he is in Albany

          9  that is why he is not here.

         10                 Proposed Intro. 149- A will be laid

         11  over, and we thank all of you on both sides that

         12  came to testified today. This hearing is closed.

         13                 (Hearing adjourned at 3:25 p.m.)

         14                 (The following testimony was read

         15  into the record)

         16

         17  Testimony of:

         18  Assemblyman Michael Gianaris

         19  New York State Assembly

         20                 Ladies and Gentlemen:

         21                 Thank you for holding this hearing to

         22  address serious concerns regarding the increasing

         23  construction of cell phone towers on residential

         24  buildings.  New Yorkers are troubled by the

         25  widespread construction of wireless facilities on or
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          2  near their homes.  I continue to work with concerned

          3  residents and local elected officials, particularly

          4  Councilman Vallone, Jr., on resolving this growing

          5  problem

          6                 While residents, consumers, elected

          7  officials and wireless companies can all agree that

          8  there is a need to improve service and eliminate

          9  dead zones, there are conflicting views on how to go

         10  about improving wireless services.  I stand firm

         11  with residents throughout New York City who feel

         12  that the need to improve service should not justify

         13  the reckless placement of wireless towers.  These

         14  towers are being installed, sometimes where they are

         15  not even needed, without appropriate oversight. That

         16  is why I introduced legislation to address these

         17  concerns and I support the City Council's effort to

         18  do the same.

         19                 Right now, residents have very little

         20  information or input about wireless towers being

         21  placed over their homes and throughout their

         22  neighborhoods.  To make matters worse, there is

         23  almost no oversight by any New York City agency into

         24  the justification of these towers being places so

         25  close to residents.
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          2                 My legislation is designed to promote

          3  responsible and efficient placement of wireless

          4  facilities in residential areas.  It has already

          5  garnered support from many Assembly members and is

          6  sponsored in the New York State Senate by Senator

          7  Padavan.  My legislation would establish a four-

          8  month moratorium on the construction of wireless

          9  facilities that will allow time for a new Siting

         10  Board to be established.  It would also:

         11                 Direct the State Department of Health

         12  to conduct a study regarding the long- term health

         13  effects of signals used by cell phone towers.

         14                 Require proof of need for the

         15  wireless facility, including a county map showing

         16  the location of other wireless facilities.

         17                 Require written notice of the

         18  facility to property owners and residents within 500

         19  feet of proposed tower.

         20                 Require that facilities must conform

         21  to aesthetics of surrounding neighborhood.

         22                 It is extremely important that city

         23  and state officials work together on this matter.  I

         24  support Councilman Vallone, Jr.'s legislation and

         25  resolutions regarding this matter.
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          2                 Council Member Vallone's legislation

          3  addresses a necessary function by City agencies: The

          4  maintenance of records. It is disturbing to know

          5  that the City does not have a separate list of the

          6  total number of permits and locations of wireless

          7  towers throughout the five boroughs.  Council Member

          8  Vallone's resolution calls on the Department of

          9  Health and Mental Hygiene to study the long- term

         10  health effects on residents living and working so

         11  closely to these towers.  The FCC has based its

         12  determinations about the safety of these towers on

         13  studies that were conduced decades ago, at a time

         14  when the average person's phone was wired through a

         15  plug in their wall.  The concept of wireless,

         16  cellular communication devices was very different

         17  than it is today.  I am also calling on the New York

         18  Department of Health to conduct a statewide study,

         19  however, New York City's unique dynamic, such as its

         20  dense population and tall buildings, warrant a

         21  separate study.

         22                 Thank you for your attention to this

         23  very important public matter.

         24

         25
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          2  Testimony of:

          3  Catherine Yankopoulos

          4  30- 94 50th Street

          5  Woodside, NY

          6

          7                 My name is Catherine Yankopoulos.  I

          8  am here as a citizen of this City where I have

          9  resided all of my life, a parent, a mother of two

         10  school age children attending public school.  I am a

         11  member and the treasurer serving on the CEC,

         12  Community Education Council, of District 30 in

         13  Queens.

         14                 I represent more than 30,000 children

         15  of District 30 and their parents.  We, the CEC of

         16  District 30 are in support of the Proposed Bill 149-

         17  A to amend local administrative law, we want the

         18  maintenance authorization permits for telephone

         19  antennas and equipment to be regulated.

         20                 In New York City the largest

         21  concentration of cell phone towers in the world and

         22  there are no laws governing what is going on.

         23                 We, the CEC of District 30, are in

         24  support to any schools against any antennas in close

         25  proximity to any place where children are having
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          2  activities especially in the capacity of learning.

          3                 This first step is control of where

          4  any antennas are placed near any schools.  These

          5  towers across form PS 122 should not be turned on at

          6  all and removed from the premises.  In the same area

          7  of Astoria the two closest schools also have

          8  antennas down the street from them IS 141 and PS 84.

          9                 Our children and the children of New

         10  York City, the greatest resource we have examination

         11  to our future, are in jeopardy.  We cannot chance or

         12  risk their well being for convenience, technology

         13  and especially for big business profit. CHILDREN

         14  COME FIRST!!!

         15                 (Hearing concluded at 3:50 p.m.)
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